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Financial Highlights

MBRE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—HLEE

2010 2009
—ZE-FF ZETNF Change
HK$’000 HK$’'000 bof)
FEx T %
7,735,711 5,804,184 +33.3
910,586 828,094 +10.0
314,956 307,333 +2.5
989,733 830,537 +19.2
HK$0.63#7T  HK$0.65/8 7T -3.1
HK$0.63/#7T  HK$0.65/8 7T -3.1
HK$0.22% 7T HKS$0.173# 7T
HK$0.0137T  HK$0.10/8 7T

Revenue Wz
Gross profit EH
Profit for the year FE R
EBITDA T BT E B S AT A
EPS (Remark 1) BRAEF (MEET)
- Basic — &R
— Diluted —#E
DPS (Remark 2) SRS (FisE2)
— Interim — R
— Final —RHA

Remark 1:

The calculation of basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share have not
reflected the subdivision of ordinary shares and bonus ordinary shares as approved
in the extraordinary general meeting held on 19 January 2011.

Remark 2:

The interim dividends in aggregate of 22 HK cents (2009: 17 HK cents) per
share amounting to approximately HK$110,717,000 were paid and payable in
2010 to shareholders on the register of members of the Company at the close of
business on 25 June 2010, 17 September 2010 and 19 January 2011, based on
508,219,527, 508,269,527 and 503,269,527 ordinary shares in issue respectively.

The final dividend of 1 HK cent per share based on 2,767,982,398 ordinary shares
after subdivision of shares and bonus ordinary shares (which took place in January
2011) in respect of the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009: final dividend of 10
HK cents, based on 503,179,527 in respect of the year ended 31 December 2009)
has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders
in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

e -

AESRERBNESREERNE T R RRN —F——F— A
THBZBERERIAS Db 2 Fr40 T B AT A E B AR -

fEE2 -

A AT D BB % 17 508,219,527 B+ 503,269,527 A% K
503,269,527k L@ E - IR ZZ—ZTFAA-+HA =
T-EFNATEARE——F - AT N BLERBERKS
IR AR RE AWM 2 REIRN REN =SS Fh R ST
20BN =TT NEF 17 L) - AFHHE110,717,0008 7T ©

EFCEERBRMFARSETARYBR(R=_Z—F— A
11)1822,767,982,398k LBl E - REHE-T—TF+=
A=+—RALEEZREREFERIBINZTTNE  HE=T
THF+ZA=+—HIEFE 21%503,179,527 KR 5T H AR HA
REER10BNM) - HAKHBRRAEERFRBEFAE L1 -

Basic earnings and dividends per share (HK cents)
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Financial Highlights
MBRE

Analysis of EBITDA, gross, operating and net profit margins (%)
RETFIR. RIA. ITERERFTHFIEE EF= KERF R EI(%)
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Financial Highlights
MBHE

Turnover by geographical segments
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Turnover by operating segments

BEE BE D 2 ERE

8

2010

2009
CHINA EUROPE
> ) | S
FE B
> %O;;TH KOREA JAz)PsAN
B3l =]
> HONG KONG OTHERS

2010

y MonoSTN&TNLCD
BESTNRINRRERER

y TFTLCD
HIRE SRR AR R
CSTNLCD

b REEREETIE
R ERREN R

006 Truly International Holdings Limited - Annual Report 2010

LCD sales breakdown
R ERMA

62

2009

LCD products

TR R E M

Electronic consumer products
BFHEBED

2009

Mono STN & TN LCD
BESINRINARZE RS
TFT LCD
SEIRE AR RN
CSTN LCD

F e kB 1 ) 515
RTINS



The Chairman’s Statement
FERES

In 2010, | am glad to report to our shareholders that we have
achieved our annual double digit growth target in revenue which
was made last year. It has reached approximately HK$7,736 million
in 2010 and represented an increase by approximately 33.3%
compared to 2009. Along with global economy recovery, the
Group’s revenue has broken a new record in the year of 2010. It is
also attributable from the global heat of smart phone. Multi-touch
capacitive touch panel is one of important reasons for the success
of smart phone in 2010. Our liquid crystal display (LCD), capacitive
touch panel and high resolution Compact Camera Module (CCM)
products have obtained benefits from the successful and mature
global smart phone market. We believe there would be a sustainable
growth opportunity ahead particular in China.

Despite the breakthrough of the Group’s turnover in 2010, the
Group’s gross profit margin (11.77%) during the year was still under
pressure due to moderate increase in PRC workers’ wages and
significant appreciation of Japanese Yen for raw materials being
purchased during the year. We were not able to transfer most of
these increased costs immediately to our customers. We expect
that we are able to improve the group’s profit margin by uplifting of
average selling prices in 2011.

We have approved to increase the authorized capital of the Company
from HK$65 million to HK$100 million and a one-to-five share
subdivision by passing the ordinary resolutions at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 19 January 2011. We believe that it can help
to improve the liquidity in the trading of the subdivided shares, thereby
enabling the Company to attract more investors and broaden its
shareholders’ base. You can refer to our poll results announcement
on 19 January 2011 for detail.

For enhancing our production capacity and meeting our customers’
need, Hong Kong Truly Semiconductors Limited (HK Truly
Semiconductors), the Company’s indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary,
entered into (1) Subscription Agreement and (2) the Sale and
Purchase memorandum of understanding with HannStar Display
Corporation (HannStar), a company listed on Taiwan Stock Exchange,
in relation to HK Semiconductors’ subscription of certain ordinary
shares in HannStar, and the supply of certain products including
TFT panels and sensors for capacitive touch panel by HannStar to
HK Truly Semiconductors on 19 January 2011. For detail of them,
you can refer to our discloseable transaction announcement on 19
January 2011.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would take this opportunity to
thank our management team and all Board members for their hard
work and dedication. | would also like to express my gratitude to
our shareholders, business partners, and banks for their continuous
support to the Group.

Lam Wai Wah, Steven
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2011

RATRARBIRIER - R - T—FTF » WRENEE
ETHEMHEFELEREE T SFNRENAE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER R DT

Business Review

Revenue for the year recorded a significant growth of approximately
33.3% amounting to around HK$7.7 billion (2009: HK$5.8 billion).
The global economy has been recovered in 2010 and is expected
to grow continuously in 2011. Audited profit for the year was
approximately 315 million which was approximately 2.5% more than
the last corresponding year in 2009 (approximately HK$307 million).
The gross profit margin for the year was decreased to around 11.8%
(2009: 14.3%) and net profit margin of approximately 4.1% (2009:
5.3%). The management believes that the Group’s profit margins
could be improved in 2011 by uplifting of average selling prices.

The Group’s LCD business including capacitive touch panel business
was about 92.4% of the total revenue for the year. Other businesses
including the sales of compact camera modules and printed circuit
boards accounted for approximately 7.6% of the Group’s revenue
in 2010. The management believes that the smart phone market
would keep hot in coming few years. Our major products would be
continuously benefited by this trend.

Segment Information

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company being
the chief operating decision maker, for the purpose of resources
allocation and assessment of performance is focused on the sales
of different type of products. Inter-segment sales are charged at
prevailing market rates. Thus the group is currently organised into two
operating segments which are sales of LCD products and electronic
consumer products. The information of each operating segment is as
follows:

manufacture and distribution of LCD
products

LCD products -

manufacture and distribution of
electronic consumer products
such as personal health care
products and electrical devices

Electronic consumer -
products
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Segment revenues and results TEWERFEE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by — AR&EEIRZEE RIRE DB DA K ELE H a0
operating and reportable segments: T

For the year ended 31 December 2010 AP —FT—FFf - HA=1—HIFFF
Electronic
LCD consumer Segment
products products total Eliminations Consolidated
RBE TR EF
Em HEBER DERE EIE | e
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FTHET THET THET FTHERT FTHERT
REVENUE 6
External sales GG 7,147,133 588,578 7,735,711 - 7,735,711
Inter-segment sales PDIEREHE - 181,146 181,146 (181,146) -
7,147,133 769,724 7,916,857 (181,146) 7,735,711
RESULT ES
Segment result AR E 498,381 25,762 524,143 (4,627) 519,516
Unallocated expenses AOEERX (30,352)
Profit before tax ARG 489,164
For the year ended 31 December 2009 Bz —FENF—A=4+—HIFE
Electronic
LCD consumer Segment
products products total Eliminations ~ Consolidated
RmAETRES BF
o HEEM DigEE 44 Ba
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT TAT FAT FAT
REVENUE g
External sales NG 5,587,175 217,009 5,804,184 - 5,804,184
Inter-segment sales DEMHEE - 167,702 167,702 (157,702) -
5,587,175 374,711 5,961,886 (157,702) 5,804,184
RESULT ES
Segment result DEXEE 402,366 34,306 436,672 (10,161) 426,511
Unallocated expenses KAEEFRT (18,065)
Profit before tax AR 408,446

EMERgRAT —E—=aam 009



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN
Geographical information

The following table set out information about the Group’s revenue
from external customers by location of customers:

PRC Fh

South Korea [EZEH

Japan SN

Hong Kong B

Europe BN

Others HAith
Outlook

While keeping a positive view on the continuously increased volume
of operations and future revenue, we are continuing to take more
prudent actions on cost control and more effective use of materials
and man power. Marketing teams and production planning are now
more closely integrated to work out the best costing structure to
achieve the optimal operating and financial results for the Group.

Since we have entered into the sale and purchase memorandum of
understanding (MOU) with HannStar Display Corporation (HannStar) in
January 2011, the Group will be able to obtain capacity support from
HannStar with its 5.3 generation thin film transistor (TFT) production
line immediately without the need to make further significant
investment in TFT production lines in the forseeable future, hence
improving the cashflow of the Group. The Group will also be able,
through co-operation with Hannstar, to secure a reliable supply of
and to control the quality of TFT panels and sensors for medium size
capacitive touch panel for the Group’s production of LCD modules for
different applications including automobiles, industrial and electronic
consumer product LCD displays. The Group will therefore be able to
diversify its production lines particularly in medium size TFT panels
and capacitive touch panels and increase the market share of the
Group in the LCD display market. For detail of our announcement
relating the MOU, you can refer to our discloseable transaction
announcement on 19 January 2011.
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2010 2009
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HK$’000 HK$’000

FH FHT

5,450,319 4,180,328

1,277,092 993,976
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156,905 126,017
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7,735,711 5,804,184
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmR DN

Financial Analysis

Investment, Assets and Liabilities

During the year, the Group acquired plant and machinery amounting
to approximately HK$442 million and properties under development
amounting to approximately HK$97 million for the purpose of
expanding its manufacturing capacity in the China factory campus.

Total assets were increased by approximately 18.8% to approximately
HK$7,915 million which comprised approximately HK$3,485 million
of current assets, approximately HK$4,229 million of property, plant
and equipment and approximately HK$201 million of other non-
current assets. Total liabilities were approximately HK$3,965 million,
of which approximately HK$3,319 million were current liabilities and
approximately HK$646 million were non-current liabilities.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Revenue for the year were increased by approximately 33.3%. Profit
for the year was increased by approximately 2.5% but earning per
share was decrease by 3.1%.

As at 31 December 2010, the outstanding bank borrowings, net of
cash and bank balances, were approximately HK$1,412 million (2009:
approximately HK$1,535 million). These borrowings bear interest
at prevailing market rate and their maturity profiles are shown in the
notes to the financial statements.

The financial position of the Group is still healthy and ready for future
capital expansion while keeping a sufficiently high level of cash and
bank balances (approximately HK$852 million at 31 December 2010)
together with adequate unutilised banking facilities. The gearing ratio
based on total interest bearing debts, net of cash and bank balances
was approximately 35.7%.

Capital expenditure of around HK$155 million for the next three
years in respect of acquisitions of property, plant and equipment and
available-for-sale investments was authorized but not contracted
for. Their expected sources of funding will be principally from internal
reserves.

BAFSAR R 20 A

RE -EBERARE
FA - AEELSERERBERNEEEM ZER  FE
REDAREBTZME N - A REELR0.97E
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BEEILINA188%EKTINGEE L EPAEL
34B85EETLRBEE - K220 ETYE - BFE
REREBARK2OVERETIERBDEE - RABAOR
39.65(8B T - BEHREIEAIBIMEETABABRLY
B.46EETTIFRB AL

REBESRBBEER
FER - WRIBRL33.3% « REEFFIERL2.5%
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

General

During the year, the Company issued 330,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each under the share option scheme at HK$2.196 per
share for an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$724,680
and 30,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each by the placement
at HK$8.10 per share for the net proceeds with the amount of
approximately HK$236 million separately. The new shares rank pari
passu with the existing shares in all respects and the issued share
capital of the Company was accordingly increased to HK$50,326,953
at 31 December 2010.

The state of the Group’s current order books is very strong.

Except for investments in subsidiaries, neither the Group nor the
Company had held any other material investments during the year.

Additions to fixed assets mainly in properties under development and
plant and machinery were approximately HK$539 million. As at 31
December 2010, the Group had no pledge or mortgage on its fixed
assets.

More than 16,000 workers and staff are currently employed in our
Shan Wei factory in China and around 90 personnel in the Group’s
Hong Kong office. Total staff costs for the year were approximately
HK$667 million.

The Group had no material contingent liabilities at the balance sheet
date and exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates will be hedged, if
any.

Other Information
Dividends

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.01
(2009: HK$0.1 based on ordinary share in issue before subdivision
of shares and bonus original share) per share for the year ended 31
December 2010, based on ordinary shares in issue after subdivision
of shares and bonus ordinary shares (number of ordinary shares issued
at 28 February 2011: 2,767,982,398), to shareholders whose names
appear on the Register of Members on 30 May 2011. It is expected
that the final dividend payments will be made to shareholders on 10
June 2011.

The interim dividends in aggregate of 22 HK cents per share (2009:
17 HK cents) were paid and payable in 2010 to shareholders on the
register of member of the Company at the close of business on 25
June 2010, 17 September 2010 and 19 January 2011, based on
503,219,527, 503,269,527 and 503,269,527 ordinary shares in issue
respectively.

The total dividend payout ratio for the year was about 44%.

012 Truly International Holdings Limited - Annual Report 2010

—R=EE

FA - ARRIREERERT S A S%2.106 4 T8
77330,000% F R EEOIB T2 L@k » AR E
BH724,680B L ¢ SN EEFRSA0OE LS
30,000,000f% F A% EIEO.1E T 2 LBk - AT 518
FREAA236EEBIT - ZEFMBMEBERGES
FEHZERSERN  ARRR-_ZT—ZTF+_-4
=+ — B2 BETRARE IS INZE50,326,9538 7T ©

AEERESZATEBRIFERDY -

BHBARRE  AEERARRHERNFARKEE
AEMBRRE

TR BEEERNE (UNEEDE BMEMERAT)
N ABR539EHET - RZT—FFE+_A=+—H =K
EE I EEEE TS EE IR -

IR E16,000% T A KiE B X ENAEB IR BRN
SR Z TR - AR K#I904 B T IR N A EEE B i
Eh o AFEEE THERAL R6.67TEETT

AEERGEABBEAEARAAEG  MAEXRK
BREL - RIEETE M -

Hib & ¥
RE

EEFERROIFEECRITERR RO BHITARY
BB (RN-_E——F-A-+\B2ZEBTEmER
HE :2,767,982,398[%) 5t EH - MR =T ——F A A
—tHBNREEMBRRENEEZE_Z—ZF+=
A=+—BLEFEZRBRESRIBW(ZEEAN
F o RBROIFARZBTAR L BRATD BITRN A
0187T) » Bt RHIBREHR —_T—F <A +HIK
FRER -

AR BTN BIFR B 317503,219,527 8% ~ 503,269,527
[i& 503,269,527 & L @A E - MR ZE—ZTF S
A=t+®H - —Z—ZFIA+EtER=ZE—F—
A+ BEERMEERERTANQRIRERMZRE
N REMN =S —SFFRHRKREA EFR2BI(=
TEAF 178) o

FRAZBIRBLLEH [B44% e



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmR DN

Customers and suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the five largest customers and
purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30%
of the total sales and purchases of the Group respectively.

As at 31 December 2010, none of the directors, their associates,
or any shareholders which to the knowledge of the directors owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
beneficial interests in the Group’s five largest customers and/or five
largest suppliers mentioned in the preceding paragraph.

Directors and Senior Management

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out as follows:

Mr. Lam Wai Wah, Steven, aged 58, is the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company. He is the founder of the Group and has
over 34 years of experience in the electronics industry. He is primarily
responsible for the formulation of the Group’s overall strategic
planning and business development.

Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James, aged 52, is an Executive Director of
the Company and the Chief Operating Officers of the Group. He is
responsible for the Group’s operations in respect of internal controls
and risk management, investors’ relationship and external affairs. He
joined the Group in 1987.

Mr. Cheung Tat Sang, James, aged 55, is an Executive Director of
the Company. He is responsible for the sales of the Group’s LCD
products and other electronic components. Prior to joining the Group
in 1989, he had been the sales manager for a number of electronics
companies for over 10 years.

Mr. Li Jian Hua, aged 47, is the Head of the Group’s LCD Production
Division and an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Li graduated
from the Jilin University of Technology and Engineering Management
in 1987 and joined the group in 1989. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked in a multinational motor car manufacturer in Guangzhou City,
the PRC for almost two years.

Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, aged 53, is an independent Non-executive
Director of the Company and the Chairman of the Group’s Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees. He is a practising
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong and is members of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Australian
Society of Certified Practising Accountants and a council member of
the Macau Society of Certified Practising Accountants. Mr. Chung
has extensive experience in accounting and financial management
and has been the independent Non-executive Director, management
consultant and Company Secretary of a number of listed companies
in Hong Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer, aged 52, is an independent Non-executive
Director and members of the Group’s Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees. He is the holder of a Bachelor of Science
degree from the University of Wisconsin, Green Bay, U.S.A. Mr. Ip is a
member of the Institute of Financial Planner of Hong Kong and is the
Senior Financial Advisor of a professional insurance company in Hong
Kong.

Mr. Heung Kai Sing, aged 62, is an independent Non-executive
Director and members of the Group’s Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees. He has experience in textile industry.

Mr. Ma Wai Tong, aged 39, is the Group’s Chief Financial Officer.
He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
bachelor’s degree in accountancy. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ma joined the Group in
January 2011 and had 14 years of auditing, accounting and financing
experience including four years with major international accounting
firms and ten years in senior accounting positions in various
industries.

By order of the Board
Lam Wai Wah, Steven
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2011
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Directors’ Report
EEEREE

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2010.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
liquid crystal display products and electronic consumer products
including personal health care products and electrical devices.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 34.

Interim dividends in aggregate of 22 HK cents per share, amounting
to approximately HK$110,717,000, was paid and payable to the
shareholders during the year.

The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of 1 HK cent per share (based on the number of ordinary shares
after subdivision of shares and issue of bonus ordinary shares in
January 2011) to the shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members on 30 May 2011, amounting to
approximately HK$27,680,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group acquired plant and machinery and
properties under development amounting to HK$398,063,000
and HK$96,720,000 respectively for the purpose of expanding its
manufacturing capacity in Shan Wei City, Guangdong Province in the
People’s Republic of China.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements during the year in the issued share capital of

the Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Directors’ Report

ESEREE

Distributable Reserves of the Company

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as
at 31 December 2010 were as follows:

Share premium BmiwE
Special reserve BRI
Retained earnings R A

Under the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
of the Company is available for distributions or paying dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum or Articles
of Association and provided that immediate following the distribution
or paying dividend the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

The special reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the net book values of the underlying assets of the
Company’s subsidiaries acquired at the date on which the shares of
these companies were acquired by the Company, and the nominal
amount of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisitions.
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Directors’ Report

ESEREE

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:
Lam Wai Wah, Steven
Wong Pong Chun, James
Cheung Tat Sang, James
Li Jian Hua

Independent non-executive directors:
Chung Kam Kwong

Heung Kai Sing

Ip Cho Ting, Spencer

In accordance with Articles 100 and 120 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Wong Pong Chun, James, Cheung Tat Sang, James and
Li Jian Hua retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The independent non-executive directors are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the above articles.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Report

ESEREE

Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares

At 31 December 2010, the interests of the directors and their
associates in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and
its associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as
follows:

Long positions

(@) Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

Name of director Capacity

EEHMR 512

LLam Wai Wah, Steven Beneficial owner

REE EnEEA
Held by spouse (note 1)
mEEREA (1)

Beneficial owner
E=HBA

Held by spouse (note 2)
M EEE (HEE2)

Wong Pong Chun, James
|

Cheung Tat Sang, James
SREE

Li Jian Hua
TR

Beneficial owner

BEmlEBA

Beneficial owner
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(@ A2FEREEIETZEER

Number of issued
ordinary shares
held

g2 B 81T
ZREREE

209,404,000

13,608,000

223,012,000
7,970,000

300,000

8,270,000

718,000

1,660,000

Percentage of
the issued share
capital of

the Company
A RATZERIT
BRAEBDLE

%

41.61

2.70

44.31
1.68

0.06

1.64

0.14
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Directors’ Report

ESEREE

Share options

Name of director Capacity
EENE 514
Lam Wai Wah, Steven Beneficial owner
EZE EREAA
Wong Pong Chun, James Beneficial owner
| EREAA
Cheung Tat Sang, James Beneficial owner
SREAE EnEEA
Li Jian Hua Beneficial owner
PR EREAA
Held by spouse (note 3)
BEMERA (HEE3)
Notes:

1. Lam Wai Wah, Steven is deemed to be interested in 13,608,000
ordinary shares of the Company, being the interests held beneficially
by his spouse, Chung King Yee, Cecilia.

2. Wong Pong Chun, James is deemed to be interested in 300,000
ordinary shares of the Company, being the interests held beneficially
by his spouse, Lai Ching Mui, Stella.

3. Li Jian Hua is deemed to be interested in 4,400,000 share options of
the Company, being the interests held beneficially by his spouse, Guo
Yu Yan.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 December 2010.

(b) EERRE
Number of

options held

Pz B ERE

8,900,000
8,915,000
4,150,000

4,400,000

26,365,000

it

Number of
underlying shares

HER G EE

8,900,000
8,915,000
4,150,000

4,400,000

26,365,000
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Directors’ Report

ESEREE

Share Options B

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in ~ BEIARD FIBERAEA 2 2 FHIEH NP G REM T E35
note 35 to the financial statements. I8 o

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share ~ FREFEAD T ZBRENRER 2 &
options during the year:

Number of Number of
options options
outstanding at Exercised outstanding at
Option type beginning of year during year end of year
RELD REHL
e RAT LR e RATE
BB R REHE FRITHE BREHE
Category 1: Directors
B EE
Lam Wai Wah, Steven 2001 - - -
EZE
Wong Pong Chun, James 2001 - - -
=HIE 2003 4,400,000 - 4,400,000
2006 4,500,000 - 4,500,000
Cheung Tat Sang, James 2001 340,000 (825,000) 15,000
SREA 2003 4,400,000 - 4,400,000
2006 4,500,000 - 4,500,000
Li Jian Hua (Note) 2003 8,550,000 - 8,550,000
FEE (M)
26,690,000 (825,000) 26,365,000

Note: Li Jian Hua is deemed to be interested in 4,400,000 2003 shares options, M5t : ZEREWR AIEAE4,400,0000 B EEEXERERES
being the interests held beneficially by his spouse, Guo Yu Yan. 2T = FRERERER -

Category 2: Substantial shareholder E-H FERR

Other than the share options previously held by Lam Wai Wah, BMWEZEBERA ZBRESN - AR BEEREAME
Steven, no share option has been granted to other substantial ~ ZBRIX FRERE -

shareholders.
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Directors’ Report

EEgREE
Number of Number of
options options
outstanding at Exercised outstanding at
Option type beginning of year during year end of year
RELD REH
i RAT R 8 RATHE
B AEE R BREHE FRITHE BIREHE
Category 3: Employees 2001 5,000 (5,000) -
F=8: EE2 2003 25,625,000 - 25,625,000
2006 4,500,000 - 4,500,000
30,130,000 (5,000) 30,125,000

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares A2 R B EERAETTE B 88T 2 gl
immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised  {E/A&9.73% T °
was HK$9.73.

BEROIES 22 H

Other than the share option schemes disclosed above, at no time & Fut 58 2 BAEEH 14 - AR RS HEAMBA
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to ~ FIRERWEL FEMZEH > BEARTZEEAFE
any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire 3@ U RS ZN A B sk (E (] H At s A B 4% 2 B 5 ok (& 25 &
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,  §FIz5 °

the Company or any other body corporate.

Arrangement to Acquire Shares or Debentures
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ESEREE

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2010, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance shows that other than the interests disclosed
above in respect of Lam Wai Wah, Steven, the following shareholders
had notified the Company of relevant interests in the issued share
capital of the Company.

Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity

RERER 4%

Chan Kin Sun (note)
pREEFT (PfEE)

Beneficial owner
EmfEA
Held by spouse
IS Y]

Chan Lai Lan
PR EERE

Beneficial owner

BEmBEAA

Note: Chan Kin Sun and his spouse, Cheng Kwan Ying, Jennifer, are deemed to
be interested in 38,756,000 shares of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2010.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an incentive to

directors and eligible employees, details of the schemes are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report

ESEREE

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Purchases, Sales or Redemption of Listed
Securities

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

Model Code

None of the Directors of the Company is aware of information that
would reasonably indicate that the Company was not in the year
under review in compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Audit Committee

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in
accordance with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting matters and internal
controls. The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee which
comprises all the three independent non-executive directors namely
Mr. Chung Kam Kwong (being the Chairman), Mr. Ip Cho Ting,
Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai Sing, and Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James,
an executive director, as members. They meet at least four times a
year.

The Group has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

Remuneration and Nomination Committees

The Company has a Remuneration Committee and a Nomination
Committee respectively which were established in accordance with
the relevant requirements of the Code. The two Committees are
chaired by Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, an independent non-executive
director and comprise three other members, namely Mr. Ip Cho Ting,
Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai Sing, being independent non-executive
directors and Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James, an executive director of
the Company.
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ESEREE

Corporate Governance

The Board considers that good corporate governance of the
Company is essential to safeguarding the interests of the shareholders
and enhancing the performance of the Group. The Board is
committed to maintain and ensure high standards of corporate
governance. The Company has complied with all the applicable code
provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
December 2010, except for a major deviation as below:

° Code Provision A.2.1 — The roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive are not separated and are performed by the same
individual, Mr. Lam Wai Wah, Steven. The Board will meet
regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations
of the Company. The Board considers that this structure will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the management of Company and believes that
this structure will enable us to make and implement decisions
promptly and efficiently.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure that
business activities and decision-making processes are regulated

in a proper and prudent manner. More details are contained in the
separate Corporate Governance Report on pages 25 to 31.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2010.

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$2,549,000.

Auditors
A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as

auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Wai Wah, Steven
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 29 March 2011
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRE

Board of Directors and Board Committees

The Board

The Board was responsible for the Company’s corporate governance,
and was ultimately accountable for the Company’s activities,
strategies and financial performance.

The Board was mainly responsible for formulating and approving the
business strategies, objectives, policies and plans of the Company,
and monitoring the execution of the Company’s strategies. It was also
responsible for overseeing the operating and financial performance
of the Company and establishing appropriate risk control policies
and procedures in order to ensure that the strategic objectives
of the Company are materialized. In addition, the Board was also
responsible for improving the corporate governance structure and
enhancing communications with shareholders.

The Board has delegated the responsibilities for the execution of
strategies and decision-making for day-to-day operation of the
Company to the management team headed by the Managing
Director, Mr. Lam Wai Wah, Steven.

The management reported regularly to the Board on the operating
and financial performance of the Company. Development, expansion
and other major capital expenditure and commitment, as well as
major financing decisions were all reviewed and approved by the
Board.

Connections between members of the Board

None of the members of the Board have any connections (including
financial, business, family relationship and other material/related
relationships) with each other during the period under review.

Director’s dealing in securities

Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, the Company
confirmed that all Directors had complied with their obligations
regarding dealings in securities under the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules during the period under review.

Non-executive directors

The non-executive Directors were not appointed for a specific term
but were subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association.
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EEERME

Independent non-executive Directors

The Company has received confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors as regards his independence
to the Company and considered that each of the independent non-
executive Directors was independent to the Company during the
period under review.

Board committees

The Board was supported by three Board Committees. Each Board
Committee has its own responsibilities, power and functions. The
chairman of the respective Board Committees reported to the Board
from time to time and made recommendations on matters discussed
when appropriate.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee were as
follows:

(1) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for remuneration of directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing the policy on such
remuneration;

(2) to determine the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors and senior management, including benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment, and make recommendations to the Board of
the remuneration of non-executive Directors;

(8) to review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time;

(4) to review and approve the compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management in connection with any loss
or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that
such compensation is determined in accordance with relevant
contractual terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive for the Company; and

(5) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that such arrangements are determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that any compensation payment
is otherwise reasonable and appropriate.
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The main role of the Nomination Committee was to assure the
process of appointments and reelection of the Board members were
transparent and to assess effectiveness of the Board as a whole
and the contribution of individual directors to the effectiveness of the
Board. The responsibilities of the Nomination Committee were as
follows:

(1)  toregularly review the structure, size and composition (including
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations to the Board in relation to any proposed
changes;

(2) toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(8) to evaluate the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

(4) to evaluate the performance of directors and make
recommendations to the Board in respect of the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors in particular the Chairman and CEO.

The roles and functions of the Audit Committee were as follows:

(1) primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

(2) to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

(8) to develop and implement policies on the engagement of
an external auditor to supply non-audit services. The Audit
Committee should report to the Board, identifying any matters
in respect of which it considers that action or improvement is
needed and making recommendations as to the steps may be
taken;
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(4)  to monitor integrity of financial statements, accounts, annual

reports and interim reports of the Company and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them,
including:

(@ any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(b)  major judgment areas;

(c) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(d) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;
(e) compliance with accounting standards; and

() compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

to discuss with the management the system of internal control
and ensure that the management has discharged its duty to
have an effective internal control system;

to consider any findings of major investigations of internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response;

to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors, and to ensure that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company; and

to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit
function.
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Meetings of the Board and Board Committees

The Directors’ attendances at the meetings of the Board and the
Board Committees for the year ended 31 December 2010 were as

follows:

Board
EEE
Director

BE

Executive directors:
HITES :

Lam Wai Wah, Steven

g

Wong Pong Chun, James
A

Cheung Tat Sang, James
SRIELE

Li Jian Hua

FREE

Independent non-executive directors:
BYFHTES

Chung Kam Kwong

IR

Heung Kai Sing

Ip Cho Ting, Spencer

E-izka

Total number of meetings held
RITEBEH

Auditor’ s Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the fees paid to the

Company’s external auditors amounted to HK$2,680,000.

ExERESEREEER
RBEE_T-—ZF+_A=+—RHIFE  EEZNE
FENEFERBEEHRIHLFEBRLNOT :

Number of meetings attended

HESERE
Board Committees
EESEET
Audit Remuneration Nomination
B i Erb
n/a n/a n/a
i A i A Sl
4 1 0
n/a n/a n/a
i A i A il
n/a n/a n/a
i A i A il
4 1 0
4 1 0
4 1 0
4 1 0
B ELRT 2 B A

HE-_Z-—ZTF+_A=+—HLFE ZIHFAL
AIINEAZ BREN 2 B FH 52,680,00078 7T °
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Internal Control

The Board was fully responsible for the maintenance of a sound
and effective internal control system within the Group. Throughout
the year from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010, the Board
conducted reviews of the effectiveness of the internal control system
in all material respects including but not limited to operational,
financial, risk management and compliance controls. The Group’s
system of internal control comprised a well-defined organizational
and management structure with levels and limits of authority which
was established to help achieve business objectives, safeguard assets
against unauthorized access or disposal, ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records to produce reliable management and
financial information for internal use and for publication purpose, help
management mitigate potential risk factors and ensure compliance
with relevant rules and regulations. The system was designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in operational systems so as to achieve the Group’s objectives
and long-term goals.

The Group’s internal control system comprised the following five
components:

(1) Organizational and Management Structure — the Group has
established an organizational and management structure with
operating policies and procedures, lines of responsibilities and
delegated authority has already been established.

(2)  Authority and Control — the relevant executive Directors and
senior management have been delegated with respective levels
of authorities with regard to key corporate strategy and policy,
contractual commitments and the dealing of price sensitive
information.

(8)  Budgetary Control and Management and Financial Reporting —
budgets have been prepared by senior management including
various department heads and were subject to review and
approval by the executive Directors on a regular basis prior
to being adopted. Operating results against budgets have
been analyzed and reported to the executive Directors as a
reference to monitor the Group’s strategy and policy. Regular
reviews by the Audit Committee and audits by external auditors
respectively have been carried out to ensure the preparation
of the management information and consolidated financial
statements are in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles, the Group’s accounting policies and
applicable laws and regulations.
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(4)  Systems and Procedures — systems and procedures have been
established to identify, measure, manage and control various
risks including business, compliance, operational, financial and
information that may have an impact on the Group and each
major department. Exposure to these risks was monitored by
the executive Directors and the management with reference to
the regular reports produced by the Audit Committee and the
external auditors.

(5) Internal Audit — the Audit Committee has performed
independent reviews of the controls and risks identified to
ensure that adequate controls have been put in place and risk
elements have been properly addressed.

According to the review results of the Audit Committee for the year
from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010, the Group’s internal
control system is functioning effectively and there was no significant
weakness found in the course of the review processes. The Board
has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems
and is of the opinion that there are no suspected frauds, irregularities,
internal control deficiencies or suspected infringement of laws, rules
and regulations that cause the Board to believe that the systems of
internal control are ineffective or inadequate. The Board is satisfied
that the Company and the Group have fully complied with the code
provisions on internal control as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code for the aforesaid year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEEHRESE

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TRULY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Truly
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 34 to 99,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the presentation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

032 Truly International Holdings Limited - Annual Report 2010

BEFERARATRR
(RESHEZMA T ERAF])

ARZHMITE TR EREMEOEFFEAETBHERE
RAR(TERARDEEMBAR (SHEI ERE ) 24
BHBHRE - REMBHREBER-_FT—FTF+-A
=T —BZHEAMBRAR  URBEZRALFEZ
RARERER SAEREPRIEARERNER
EFRETEEABRBEREMBEEER -

EENGEMBBRREAAREZERR

BERARZEFARABREEEGHNAERMZEL
MBREEAREBER G2 HER ERMAEER
N2 EEMBRE  URABEEZRR/LFE AR
BEE - UERAMBRRTFERRNMEFRERNE
B E AR -

B2 E1E

AT BEERBEATZER - URFERAUHRER
REER  YREBEEHEZBIEHERZBRERR
ERTZEBR - MAMEREMAE - AT ARS
AR AEFEMA LRI B EREE - AITTHRE
BREFMASEM I BREERETER IR -
ZERUNEBRATETEERE ARSI RRTH
% NEEREXSHRENBHRRES T FEENE
REBERERAL



Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RES

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2010
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
29 March 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEEHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE_Z-TF+-_A=+—RHIFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses
Administrative expenses
Distribution and selling expenses
Finance costs

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
for the year

Exchange differences arising
on translation

Total comprehensive income
for the year

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic

Diluted

Yezm

HEMA

EH

HABWKA

Hit B
THE R

7 RSHE A
MBER

B 75 At )
PrSHRI

RE A
REEHMEEKA

BEMRES ZINEEZE

AEEZEHBALRE

BREF

AR
g
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Notes
FdsE

6

10

11
12

16

2010
—z-=F
HK$’000
FE
7,735,711
(6,825,125)

910,586
37,937
(36,768)
(231,653)
(147,524)
(43,414)

489,164
(174,208)

314,956

75,330

390,286

HK$0.637 7T
HK$0.637& 7t

2009
—ZETNF
HK$’000
FiET
5,804,184
(4,976,090)

828,094
25,587
(101,840)
(186,450)
(110,302)
(46,643)

408,446
(101,113)

307,333

15,611
322,944

HK$0.657% 7T
HK$0.657% 7T



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BT SRR

At 31 December 2010
RZZT—ZTF+-_A=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and
equipment

Prepaid lease payments

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Available-for-sale
investments

Deferred tax assets

Deposits paid for acquisition
of property, plant and
equipment

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Prepaid lease payments

Loans receivable

Trade and other receivables

Tax recoverable

Derivative financial
instruments

Bank balances and cash

Non-current assets held for
sale

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Tax liabilities

Derivative financial
instruments

Bank and other borrowings,
unsecured

Bank overdrafts, unsecured

NET CURRENT ASSETS
(LIABILITIES)

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

FRBEE
M - B NRRE

BNEERNE
BVEE
kS

B ERE

EREHIAEE
RUEEME - BE K
RN 2

RBEE

FE

BNEEREA

FEWE TR

IR L B T 2 L e B W R IR
AU E IR
TESRTA

RITH/EFRRE

FEHEFRRBEE

RBAEE

& AR TR I EL A P 5 RIR
IR B

TESBTA
RITREMES - EER

RITBEX - EIEH

RBEERE)FE

REERRBRE

Notes
BaE

17
18
19

20
29

21
18
22
23

24
25

26

27

24

28

31.12.2010

S
+=A=+-A
HK$’000
FH 7

4,228,878
153,895
5,710
413

8,451

32,613

4,429,960

748,872
3,730

1,853,826
12,148

851,945

3,470,521
14,535

3,485,056

1,566,786
97,165

1,746

1,653,287
3,318,984

166,072

4,596,032

31.12.2009
—ZETNF
+=—A=+—~
HK$’000
FAT
(restated)
(&%)

4,177,670
143,062
11,417
413

8,225

24,992
4,365,779

692,870
3,452
17,045
1,044,490
33,079

503,086
2,294,022

2,294,022

1,050,279
45,087

7,414

2,023,295
3,126,075

(832,053)

3,633,726

1.1.2009
—ZETNF
—H—H
HK$'000
FHT
(restated)
(&%)

4,223,040
120,832
18,307
413

5,250
754

28,908
4,397,504

708,344
3,500
53,479
649,718
56,997

2,752
687,915

2,162,705

2,162,705

1,108,723
59,369

8,731

2,092,055
526
3,264,404

(1,101,699)

3,295,805
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At 31 December 2010
RZZT—ZTF+-_A=+—H

31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—E-FF —EENE —EENF
+=A=+—-H8 +=ZA=+—8H —HA—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
BiaE FET FAT FAET
(restated) (restated)
(&B51) (&%)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 3¥FBEE
Bank and other borrowings, 81T R HMEE - MK
unsecured 28 610,185 14,775 20,564
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIB A E 29 35,442 34,897 29,136
645,627 49,672 49,700
3,950,405 3,484,054 3,246,105
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B R #E
Share capital &N 30 50,327 47,294 47,288
Share premium and reserves B {718 & [ 3,900,078 3,436,698 3,198,755
Equity attributable to equity ~~ ANAFI#EZERE A
holders of the Company FE{EHERR 3,950,405 3,483,992 3,246,043
Non-controlling interest EEalivg T - 62 62
Total equity T ARRE 3,950,405 3,484,054 3,246,105

The consolidated financial statements on pages 34 to 99 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29

March 2011 and are signed on its behalf by:

Lam Wai Wah, Steven

HNFEMAEFOAZFAUBHRRER_T——F
ZA-ThREESESIERFETIE  YHIATA

THRERE -

Wong Pong Chun, James

mEE BERR
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in

mEEmSER

For the year ended 31 December 2010

Equity

Total equity
attributable

to owners Non-

Exchange Other  Retained ofthe ~ controlling
reserve  reserves profits  Company interest Total

KAREEA S8
AERE  ABRR  RERH BEEREE  RRER &it
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$000  HK$'000
T T T T T Tk

(note b)
(Fi3tp)

504612 447357 1915801 3,246,043 62 3,246,106
- - 307333 307,333 - 30733
15,611 - - 15,611 - 15,611
15,611 - 307,333 322944 - 32044
- - - 132 - 132
- 26,840 (26,840) - - -
- - (85,127)  (85,127) - (85,127)
520223 474197 2,111,167 3483992 62 3,484,054
- - 314956 314,956 - 314956
75,330 - - 75,330 - 75,330
75,330 - 31496 390,286 - 390,286
- - - 243000 - 243000
- - - (6,563) - (6,563)
- - - 725 - 725
- 38,578 (38,578) - - -
- - (161,05 (161,035 - (161,039
- - - - (62 (62
595563 512775 2226510 3,950,405 - 3950405

R R TR PT UK RE I 8 1 B 2 Rt E (B B A 1 B ph U B
BITZBRMEEMERZEZRE o

HE_Z—ZF+_A=+—HILEE
Share Capital
Share Share  options Special redemption
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve
&%
Bx  BROEE BREGE KRR WORE
HKS000  HK$000  HK$'O000  HKS000  HK$000
TEL TEL AL TEL TE#L
(note a)
(Fi*a)
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-A-R 47,288 319,913 10,000 990 82
Profit for the year REEET - - - - -
Other comprehensive income ~ AEEH M 2EMA
for the year
- Exchenge differences arising - &G4 £ FRE L2
on translation of foreign NEZBRERR
operations and total income ERRRZBRA
directly recognised in equity - - - - -
Total recognised income for TERRAZBHA
the year - - - - -
Shares issued at premium RRERIRN 6 126 - - -
Transfer E1S = = = = =
Dividends recognised as BRRAEZRE
distribution (note 15) (Hrzk15) - - - - -
At 31 December 2009 RZZENET-A=T-R 47204 320089 10,000 990 82
Proft for the year REERT - - - - -
Other comprehensive Income for  AFEE2ERA
the year
- Exchange differences arising - &N EBHEEZ
on translation of foreign MEZBRERR
operations and total income ERED RPN
directly recognised in equity = = = = =
Total recognised income TEERRZEMA
for the year = = = = =
Placement of new share FETk 3,000 240,000 - - -
Expenses incurred in relation  BEHREL 2 F%
to the placement of new
shares - (6,563) - - -
Shares issued at premium RaBRIRA 33 692 - - -
Transfer 1 = = = = =
Dividends recognised as ARPEZRE
distribution (note 15) (RizE15) - - - - -
Lioidation of a subsidiary —HNELREE = = = - -
At 31 December 2010 RZE-FF+-R=1-H 50,327 554,168 10,000 990 82
Notes: B
(@) The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value (@)
of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisitions.
(b) Other reserves comprise the statutory surplus reserve and the enterprise (o)

expansion reserve of the subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China other than Hong Kong (the “PRC”). According to the Articles of
Association of the PRC subsidiaries, a percentage of net profit as reported
in the PRC statutory accounts should be transferred to the statutory surplus
reserve and the enterprise expansion reserve determined at the discretion of
the board of directors of these companies. The statutory surplus reserve can
be set off against accumulated loss whilst the enterprise expansion reserve
can be used for expansion of production facilities or an increase in registered
capital.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN e~ —}
MEEEMER
For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE_Z—ZF+_A=+—HILEE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments
Allowance for loans receivable
Allowance for inventories
Change in fair value on derivative
financial instruments
Amortisation of development expenditure
Amortisation of trademarks
Amortisation of technical know-how
Allowance for bad debts
Depreciation and amortisation of
property, plant and equipment
Release of prepaid lease payments
Liquidation of a subsidiary
Loss on disposal/write-off of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of non-current assets held
for sale
Finance costs

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Increase in inventories

Increase in trade and other receivables

Increase (decrease) in trade and other
payables

Decrease in derivative financial instruments

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax refund
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid
Tax paid for other jurisdictions

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Addition of prepaid lease payments

Acquisition of intangible assets

Repayment of loans receivable

Interest received

Proceeds from disposals of property, plant
and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of non-current
assets held for sale

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
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2010

—z-=F

HK$°000
FHET

489,164

(340)

1,552

42
5,665
1,258

451,448
3,379
(62)

17,395

(20,342)
43,414

992,573
(35,329)
(795,255)

466,281
(7,220)

621,050
489
(54,318)
(48,813)
(52)

518,356

(514,266)

(32,613)
(13,644)

17,045
340

3,987

69,218
(469,933)

2009

—ZETNF

HK$’000
FHET

408,446
(2,939)

5,250
24,762
25,000

7,467
1,168

79
5,665
3,332

368,536
4,033

660

46,643

898,102
(9,526)
(382,585)

(53,444)
(6,032)

446,515
34,772
(34,523)
(93,400)
(35)

353,329

(306,228)

(24,992)
(26,215)
(22)
11,672
2,939

11,310

(331,536)



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE_Z—ZF+_A=+—HILEE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of bank and other borrowings

Dividends paid

Interest paid on bank and other borrowings

New bank and other borrowings raised

Proceeds from issue of shares

Proceeds from placement of new shares

Expenses incurred in relation to the
placement of new shares

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR, represented by
bank balances and cash

BMEERE
BRERTREMER
ERRE
ERNRITREMEERNS
FERIT R EMEE
BT PSR
HE’% AT 50R
FREMAREL 2

RMEFHELE (R RSP

RERBREESEEEEMORD) FH

FUNzRERREEEEE

EREH

FRZBERVEEEER -
BIRITREF RS

2010
—z-=F
HK$’000
FH

(1,522,862)
(120,460)
(43,414)
1,748,264
725
243,000

(6,563)

298,690

347,113

503,086

1,746

851,945

ENERBRAR =

—FE—

2009

—ZETNF

HK$’000
FHET

(860,132)
(85,127)
(46,643)

785,583
132

(206,187)

(184,394)

687,389

91

503,086

zegs 039



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-_ZT-TF+_A=1+—ALEFE

1.

General

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company. The Company is a public limited company with its
shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Lam
Wai Wah, Steven. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “General Information” to the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is United States dollars.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars which is different from the functional currency
of the Company, as the directors of the Company consider
that Hong Kong dollars is the most appropriate presentation
currency in view of its place of listing.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the business of
manufacture and sale of liquid crystal display (“LCD”) products
and electronic consumer products including personal health
care products and electrical devices.

Application of New or Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, a
number of new or revised standards and interpretations (“new
and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are effective for
the Group’s financial period beginning on 1 January 2010.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of
Improvements to HKFRSs 2008
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009

HKAS 27 (as revised Consolidated and Separate Financial

in 2008) Statements

HKAS 39 Eligible Hedged Items
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 Group Cash-settled Share-based
(Amendments) Payment Transactions

HKFRS 3 (as revised Business Combinations
in 2008)

HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
(“Int”) 17 Owners

HK Int 5 Presentation of Financial Statements

— Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-_ZT-TF+_A=1+—ALEFE

2.

Application of New or Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material effect
on the amounts reported in these consolidated financial
statements and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations and
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

The Group applies HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combinations”
prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 January 2010. The requirements in HKAS
27 (Revised) “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”
in relation to accounting for the Group’s changes in ownership
interests in a subsidiary after control is obtained and for loss
of control of a subsidiary are also applied prospectively by the
Group on or after 1 January 2010.

As there is no transaction during the current year to which
HKFRS 3 (Revised) is applicable and the transaction resulting
in a deemed disposal of interests in a subsidiary to which
HKAS 27 (Revised) applies is not significant to the Group, the
application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) and HKAS 27 (Revised) and
the consequential amendments to other HKFRSs has had no
material effect on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the current or prior accounting years.

Results of the Group in future periods may be affected by
future transactions to which HKFRS 3 (Revised) and HKAS 27
(Revised) and the consequential amendments to other HKFRSs
are applicable.

Amendment to HKAS 17 Leases

As part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009, HKAS 17
Leases has been amended in relation to the classification of
leasehold land. Before the amendments to HKAS 17, the Group
was required to classify leasehold land as operating leases
and present the leasehold land as prepaid lease payments
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
amendments to HKAS 17 has removed such a requirement.
The amendments require that the classification of leasehold
land should be based on the general principles set out in HKAS
17, that is, whether or not substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of a leased asset have been transferred
to the lessee.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-_ZT-TF+_A=1+—ALEFE

2.

Application of New or Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendment to HKAS 17 Leases (Continued)

In accordance with the transitional provisions of HKAS 17, the
Group reassessed the classification of unexpired leasehold land
as at 1 January 2010 based on information that existed at the
inception of the leases. Leasehold land that qualifies for finance
lease classification has been reclassified from prepaid lease
payments to property, plant, and equipment retrospectively.
This resulted in prepaid lease payments with the carrying
amounts of HK$9,011,000 and HK$8,798,000 as at 1 January
2009 and 31 December 2009 respectively being reclassified to
property, plant and equipment.

As at 31 December 2010, leasehold land that qualifies for
finance lease classification with the carrying amount of HK$
8,585,000 has been included in property, plant and equipment.
The application of the amendments to HKAS 17 has had no
impact on the reported profit or loss or earnings per share for
the current and prior years.

Hong Kong Int 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause

Hong Kong Int 5 Presentation of Financial Statements -
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause (‘HK Int 5°) clarifies that
term loans that include a clause that gives the lender the
unconditional right to call the loans at any time (‘repayment on
demand clause’) should be classified by the borrower as current
liabilities. The Group has applied HK Int 5 for the first time in the
current year. Hong Kong Interpretation 5 requires retrospective
application.

In order to comply with the requirements set out in HK Int 5,
the Group has changed its accounting policy on classification
of term loans with a repayment on demand clause. In the past,
the classification of such term loans were determined based
on the agreed scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. Under HK Int 5, term loans with a repayment on
demand clause are classified as current liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-Z-ZSF+-_A=+—HILFE

Hong Kong Int 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause (Continued)

As a result, bank loans that contain a repayment on demand
clause with the aggregate carrying amounts of HK$60,009,000
and HK$100,005,000 have been reclassified from non-current
liabilities to current liabilities as at 31 December 2009 and 1
January 2009 respectively. As at 31 December 2010, bank
loans (that are repayable more than one year after the end
of the reporting period but contain a repayment on demand
clause) with the aggregate carrying amount of HK$93,677,000
have been classified as current liabilities. The application of
HK Int 5 has had no impact on the reported profit or loss or
earnings per share for the current and prior years.

Such term loans have been presented in the earliest time band
in the maturity analysis for financial liabilities (see note 32 for

EFHERBEST MBERR2IE - FRA
HESRESRERRRZENERZSD
S UNE-)

At - EERESRERER  REBEAR
60,009,000/% 7T & 100,005,000/ 7Tt Z $R1TE K
ENRRZZEENFF+_A=+—AK=ZEZ
hWE—R—BBFERBEESEHHIBERREDE
B -R-_E—TFE+_A=+—H FEEAE
/93,677,000 7L 2 IRITE R (AR IR E AR —
FRER  BABRNEARETEIOESER
MENBE - ERASREES U EEANEE K
BEFEMERESHTREFIBRTE -

BRI RE N B EEIHE S AR
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details).

Summary of the effects of the above change in PR ET RS FERM
accounting policies

The effects of the above changes in accounting policies on the
financial positions of the Group as at 1 January 2009 and 31

FletBREPHHAERAR —_ZETNF—A
—BRZZEZEAF T A=+ —HZHBIRR

December 2009 is as follows: ZREWT
As at As at
1.1.2009 As at 31.12.2009 As at
(originally 1.1.2009 (originally 31.12.2009
stated) Adjustments (restated) stated) Adjustments (restated)
RZBBNE RIBBhE RIBBNE R-BBNE
—-A—-H —B—B +=ZA=t+-H T=A=t-H
(RARZ35) pil (B5)  (F&E35) piik (E31)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL FAL TAL FAL THEL TAL
Property, plant and mE - BEREE
equipment 4,214,029 9,011 4,223,040 4,168,872 8,798 4,177,670
Prepaid lease payments, T &S -
non-current IERE 129,630 (8,798) 120,832 151,647 (8,585) 143,062
Prepaid lease payments, T &S -
current Vi) 3,713 (213) 3,500 3,665 (213) 3,452
Bank and other PITREMES
borrowing, unsecured I - FE
- current (1,992,050 (100,005) (2,092,055) (1,968,286) (60,009)  (2,023,295)
Bank and other PITREMES
borrowing, unsecured S IR
- non-current (120,569 100,005 (20,564) (74,784) 60,009 (14,775)
Total effect on assets BERARBZ
and liabilities FERT 2,234,753 - 2,234,753 2,286,114 - 2,286,114
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-_ZT-TF+_A=1+—ALEFE

3.

Potential Impact Arising on the New or
Revised Accounting Standards Not Yet
Effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 20102
HKAS 12

(Amendments)
HKAS 24 (Revised)

Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets®
Related Party Disclosures*

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of Rights Issues!

HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
(Amendments) Assets®

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments”

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
(Amendments) Requirement#

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 and 1
January 2011, as appropriate

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010
@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in November
2009) introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (as revised in November 2010) adds requirements
for financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair
values at the end of subsequent accounting periods.

044 Truly International Holdings Limited - Annual Report 2010

6] RAERUZ #i 5] RIS RT S5 EA
FEAZBRESE

AREE I EITAIEM T2 RMERRERZ

R RERT BB SRS ER -

BRHBREER(ET) —T-TERMH ERYR
SRR 2 Bt

BEGHEAF 12N () BEHE: WOHEREES

e PRIV BEALHE:
(E4T%)
ERRIEREVRE)  HRZHE

BRMBREENETHR
(f&4T)

BBHBHREERFR

B (ERABRERER
88)-REBF14%(BFT)

B (ERABRERER
B8)-2EF19%

BE-S3eREE

SRIA
REESERKZBMNFR

IMERTAEHERAR®

T RIE-EF_A-BIARRRZFEHBER

: RoF-BFELA-AR-F—F-A-A(NE
FR) SRR PR 2 4F S BRR A

s RIE-THELA-ARURFARZ FERRER
¢ RIE——F-A-BAURRBZFERRER
5 RIE——FEtA-BIURRBZFERRER
6 RIE——F— A ARURFARZFERRER
7 RIE=F-A-BRAERRZFEHBER

EEMBHRELENZSRIERITAEI(ZFETH
FH—ABEMSIAHEREEZDBERELZ
HMRE - BRAVBHREENFOR IR TA

—E-TFE A MAHERAERRK
HIERZAE °

REEEMBREENFSR - ABENEERES
FTHERIEROSKI 2@ T A - #FRiE |82
EHEREEMEERNERIRBIENALAFE
T8 - BRE  REXRHRANBKRAORE
RERBNMFEAERERINASERIAREE
ERZMNEMELAANREREZEBHRE —
MR E & ST B A R IR AT 2 © BT
BEMEBHREMEAREDRER S M
HREFRATERTE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-_ZT-TF+_A=1+—ALEFE

3.

Potential Impact Arising on the New or
Revised Accounting Standards Not Yet
Effective (Continued)

The Directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the financial
year ending 31 December 2013. Based on the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 December
2010, the application of the new standard is not expected to
have significant impact on amounts reported in respect of the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities.

The directors anticipate that the application of the other new
and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on Stock Exchange and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-_ZT-TF+_A=1+—ALEFE

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Prior to 1 January 2010,
losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in excess of
the non-controlling interests in the subsidiary’s equity were
allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent
that the non-controlling interests had a binding obligation and
were able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combination

Business combinations that took place prior to 1 January
2010

Acquisition of businesses were accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition was measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that met the conditions for recognition were
generally recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the recognised amount
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in
the recognised amount of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeded the cost of the
acquisition, the excess was recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The minority interest in the acquiree was initially measured at
the minority interest’s proportionate share of the recognised
amount of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquiree.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses, and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units, (or groups of cash-
generating units), that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on
the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the sale is highly probable and the non-current
asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within
one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest
income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

4.

FESFEE

[k {62
EESEMNEBZRERNEUGFR(ERE
) SEZEMEARHBRRE IR ETR
ﬁiﬁi;ﬁ° ARFEEREHWBEL 2 BE

msE %“Mﬁﬁzﬁéﬁmﬁuﬁhﬁi
%mmm‘ﬂﬂﬁﬂﬂ BHReRMEMLZA
WmE R D N%EL 2 REER - Qg2
BEEE - LB E LS REIZERL - 128N
ZEMNEEEZREEAEERL A D E2IZ
BUsHEMEEZ B ZEEE BEZ
EHREBREERFE2EKER 2B
RER o B EER R EBENEZED
THRME -

EHEERMRERMEN - IEEEHERS
ZERNEF MEB LS -

REHEFRRBEE

WIERBEEL EMETEEBHERXHMIE
FRFBEERBKRED - AIFBAFIELE - R
FﬁTmLﬂ%EE&#mﬁéﬁT%huﬁ
MEE  FREETSRATEARKME - &
BELABETHE  BRBEERNED
BRHES —FRARERERRD THHE -

DERFHELE 2 R EERENE ZRE
BEEAFERDEXNRNTFREEE -

Wz HERR

Wt THAB WS ERAREZ X FEFE - #BR
ERX¥BERTPHEERZENRITNREE
HERATRIR 2 FEULHRIR -

EmcHERBEDEMERNENEEREE

B RERR ©

FEREM e Al SR AR S B R ek S ERBE S A]
FHAEZERT - ARREBHEE K
A EREENSBRARKRELE - 2EKF
BZAE - RIBERANBERFEFE - FrEMA
ZERNENR NS HERE - HemEERS
FRAZGARKRAEREEENTRNEZEE
FREFEITEE -

ZEREEERAT —E—2ggFw 047



For the year ended 31 December 2010
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including building held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes (other than properties under
development as described below), are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of the
items of property, plant and equipment (other than properties
under development and buildings) less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the reducing balance method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Buildings are depreciated over their useful lives, or where
shorter the lease term, using the straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner-occupied
purpose

Buildings in the course of development for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any identified
impairment losses. Cost includes professional fees and for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Amortisation of prepaid
lease payments provided during the construction period is
included as part of costs of buildings under construction.
Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
properties, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended uses.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets including acquired technical know-how and
the cost incurred in the registration of trademarks with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with definite useful lives are provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have
been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for an internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases, in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the
exchange reserve).

From 1 January 2010 onwards, on the disposal or liquidation of
a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation, all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale for which the commencement
date for capitalisation is on or after 1 January 2009, are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Government grants related to depreciable assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss over the useful
lives of the related assets. Government grants that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial asset or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The Group’s financial assets are classified into derivative
instruments at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees or points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including loans receivable, trade and other receivables and
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

At the end of the reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets other than financial assets at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:
° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
o default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments or observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade or other receivables
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified
into financial liabilities at FVTPL and other financial liabilities.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL comprise derivative financial
instruments.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
bank and other borrowings and bank overdrafts) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

056 Truly International Holdings Limited - Annual Report 2010

4.

FESFEE

ETRMITAE)

EREBERREATARE)

BERMEX

ERMEE— BN ERPRAESRARE
BV SRR AN IA R D BN SR8 7% - BIEA
TR e B EEMATF L E LR (3
R RZ AEET AR IRIR & (R EEREYTIR 2 K| o

) 8 B3 IR BRI R SR -
RIB U A TFEFIE (R ERAATETIE])
ZEBABRNESIATENEZ SBAE
OFEFTESBTA -

HiteBAE

Ht oA EaRmRNREREMENKIE -
RITREMEEUARRITES - REABRF
TR E -

RATA
ARRAEIT AT ERHIBRERETRAR
REWFSRIRRR ©

PTEERMTA

MEIEE—@]EAME HZET B HIA R FERE
&ffﬁEAEﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂii%ﬁﬁﬁéﬂiﬁ o PTEE

EZH&Z &2 BT R BN B s R FERR

BUH#ER

Mt EEWRRE @ RELENERE - e/
BECEREASECSKERSREER G
Z @A E R KL ERER - RIS B E E RS
EUBTER

REUHHER T REER - EEKREERD IR
EUREAREEEREMEERAER R

FHESRAMNZ 25 - BB ER -
RN BBAMN IR ES TERL - EHEE
Hi - RUERE & BB E R EUERER - BUHRER

%ﬁﬂé%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁifgﬁiﬂ ZER
KB RER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-_ZT-ZTF+_A=1+—ALEFE

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees after 7 November 2002
and vested on or after 1 January 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted on or after 1 January
2005 is recognised as an expense in full at grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the share
options reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to employees on or before 7 November
2002, or granted after 7 November 2002 and vested before
1 January 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded
in the consolidated financial statements until such time as the
options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in the profit
or loss in respect of the value of options granted. Upon the
exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued are
recorded as additional share capital at the nominal value of the
shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share over
the nominal value of the shares is recorded as share premium.
Options which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date
are deleted from the register of outstanding options.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.
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5.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continueqd)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The key estimates and assumptions that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

Income taxes

As described in note 11, the Group received a notice of
determination dated 10 March 2011 from the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department (the “IRD”) for the additional assessment
of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in respect of
the disallowance of an offshore profits claim together with
non-deduction of management fee, prescribed fixed assets
and statutory depreciation allowance in aggregate to the tax
effect of HK$135,889,000 for the years of assessment from
2001/2002 to 2005/2006. The Group is planning to lodge an
appeal (the “Tax Appeal”) to the Board of Review.

Pending the outcome of the Tax Appeal, the Group has made
a provision of HK$55,000,000 (2009: Nil) in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2010, which
represents the Company’s directors’ best estimate of the
potential tax liability. In determining the liability, the management
has taken relevant professional advice and exercised judgement
in estimating the timing and future cash outflows. If the actual
future cash flows are different from expectation, a material
underprovision of income tax may arise. On the other hand, tax
provision up to HK$55,000,000 that has been made in respect
of Tax Appeal may be reversed if the judgement of the appeal is
favourable.

Impairment of purchase discount receivables

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its purchase
discount receivables at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether those purchase discount receivables have
suffered an impairment loss. Management has exercised
judgement when estimating the timing and future cash flows
expected to be derived from the receivables and ascertain their
future cash flows. Where the future cash flows of a receivable
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, an impairment
loss will be provided for such a receivable and recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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5.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of purchase discount receivables
(Continued)

As detailed in note 23, as at 31 December 2010, purchase
discounts from suppliers amounting to HK$126,197,000 (2009:
HK$142,942,000) are expected to be settled in the next twelve
months from the end of the reporting period. In determining
the amount of receivable, the management has exercised
judgement in estimating the timing and future cash flows to be
recovered and determined no impairment was necessary at the
end of the reporting period. If the actual cash flows or timing of
recovery are different from expectation, a material impairment
loss may arise.

Revenue

Revenue represents the gross proceeds received and
receivable on the sale of goods during the year, net of sales tax,
trade discounts and returns, and is analysed as follows:

Sales of LCD products

Sales of electronic consumer products HEETHBER

Segment Information

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purpose of
resources allocation and assessment of performance is focused
on the sales of different types of products. Inter-segment
sales are charged at prevailing market rates. Thus the group
is currently organised into two operating segments which are
sales of LCD products and electric consumer products. The
information for each operating segment is as follows:

LCD products — manufacture and distribution of
LCD products

Electronic consumer — manufacture and distribution of
products electronic consumer products
such as personal health
care products and electrical
devices.

HERBBREREMR

ARETHERATTEESENE
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MM 23Tt - R —FF+ = A
=+—0 EHHEEATIEENNESHE
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7. Segment Information (Continueq) 7.
Segment revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by operating and reportable segments:
For the year ended 31 December 2010
Electronic
LCD consumer
products products
REBTRERm ETHEEM
HK$°000 HK$’000
THExT THExT
REVENUE &
External sales NG 7,147,133 588,578
Inter-segment sales DIEEEE - 181,146
7,147,133 769,724
RESULT 4
Segment result DIEELE 498,381 25,762
Unallocated expenses FHERE
Profit before tax A A
For the year ended 31 December 2009
Electronic
LCD consumer
products products
REBTNREDN ESFHEEM
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
REVENUE &
External sales NG 5,687,175 217,009
Inter-segment sales DEEREEE - 157,702
5,687,175 374,711
RESULT 4|
Segment result DRSS 402,366 34,306
Unallocated expenses ROEFX
Profit before tax BRI

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs and directors’
salaries. This is the measure reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.
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Segment
total Eliminations Consolidated
PEAE e ey
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THET THET
7,735,711 - 7,735,711
181,146 (181,146) -
7,916,857 (181,146) 7,735,711
524,143 (4,627) 519,516
(30,352)
489,164

BE-ZZAF+-A=+—-HLEE

Segment
total  Eliminations  Consolidated
DIRMBE EIkE| o)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHIT FHEIT FAT
5,804,184 - 5,804,184
157,702 (157,702) -
5,961,886 (157,702) 5,804,184
436,672 (10,161) 426,511
(18,065)
408,446
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7. Segment Information (Continued)

Other information

For the year ended 31 December 2010

7. 7EER®

Htv&r

BE-Z-E2F+A=t-RHLFE

Electronic
LCD consumer
products products Consolidated
BRETRREM BT HEEM ma
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET
Amounts included in the FTE SR FAT
measure of segment profits: PREMNEE
Depreciation and amortisation e LY 414,269 42,886 457,155
Loss on disposal/write off of &M
property, plant and equipment WE K& EE 11,114 6,281 17,395
Allowance for bad debts RS - 1,258 1,258

For the year ended 31 December 2009

BE_ZTAFT-A=1T—HILFE

Electronic
LCD consumer
products products Consolidated
TR SRR RS EE o BFHEBEM )
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FAT FAET FET
Amounts included in the FTE SRR AT
measure of segment profits: BEMNEE
Depreciation and amortisation HrEE Ny 328,685 46,763 375,448
Loss on disposal/write-off of HE s
property, plant and equipment 5 KR A 2 EiE 640 20 660
Allowance for bad debts ZARE 3,332 - 3,332
Allowance for loan receivables BB A 24,762 = 24,762
Allowance for inventory FEREE 25,000 - 25,000

HROBEEMNABETEHIBLERKRIE
ATEHIEE - MO R TIRGEE o

Segment assets and liabilities are not disclosed as they are not
regularly reviewed by chief operating decision maker.
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7. Segment Information Continued) 7. 2EER®)
Geographical information & &
The following table set out information about (i) the Group’s TREBF()AEEIREF AT E S R IMNEE
revenue from external customers by location of customers and P R (i AL @R E E TR S EAIER
(i) the Group’s non-current assets by location of assets. FEEMNER

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

HEREF S FERBEE
2010 2009 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009

—E-TF ZEThF
+=A +=A ZEThF
—E-2F —ZETNF =+—H =+—H —HA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET FET BT FAET
(restated) (restated)
(&%) (E251)
PRC A 5,450,319 4,180,328 4,359,578 4,305,747 4,355,703
South Korea [FaE 1,277,092 993,976 - 81 87
Japan B 233,640 125,847 - - -
Hong Kong B 347,741 170,439 61,926 51,713 35,710
Europe BN 156,905 126,017 - - -
Others Hitw 270,014 207,577 5 13 -

7,735,711 5,804,184 4,421,509 4,357,554 4,391,500

Notes: Bt EE
(1) Regarding revenue arising from sales to external customers in Europe () MEREABBMNEETHEINTRF A HEE WS
and others, no individual countries are material and hence separate T BEBEEREEERNEMNELBREE

disclosure is not required.

(2)  Non-current assets exclude financial instruments and deferred tax @ RPEETEECRIAEEREEE -
assets.
8. Other Income 8. EHlg A

2010 2009
—EB-EF —TENEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FA&T

Other income includes: EA A BIE -
Government grants (note 37) ERTERL (M7 37) 4,047 1,693
Interest income F B U A 340 2,939
Rental income el A 7,417 5,767
Scrap Sales EERIHE 15,897 6,782
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9. Other Gains and Losses

Gain on disposal of non-current assets
classified as held for sale

Net foreign exchange losses

Loss on disposal/write-off of property,
plant and equipment

Decrease of fair value on derivative
financial instruments

Allowance for doubtful debts

Allowance for loans receivable

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments

10. Finance Costs

Interest on bank and other borrowings
wholly repayable within five years

11. Income Tax Expense

Current tax:
Hong Kong
PRC Enterprise Income Tax
Other jurisdictions

Under(over)provision in prior years:
Hong Kong

Withholding tax
Land appreciation tax
Deferred tax (note 29)

Income tax expense for the year

2010
—E-FF
HK$’000
FET
HENEARELEIERD
B2 W (20,342)
HNEEIEF 58 36,905
HE MEmE - BER
B ki 17,395
PTESBMIARNFEERD
1,552
REREEE 1,258
FEUR B SR -
Al SR ERERE
36,768
10. BB EH
2010
—E-FF
HK$’000
FExT
BITEERETARAFREE
BEZEENFE 43,414
11. FIBHixH
2010
—E-FF
HK$’000
FHxT
NEARIE
BB 11,145
Bl S FTS R 84,149
Hitwalxkm 52
95,346
BEFERETRGBERES)
BB 56,148
151,494
RIS 17,381
+ it ER 5,014
FEIEFRIA(MI5E29) 319
REFBHEE 174,208

2009
—ZETNF
HK$’000
FHBT

60,369
660

7,467
3,332
24,762

5,250
101,840

2009
—ZETNF
HK$'000
FHBT

46,643

2009
—ETNF
HK$’000
T8t

14,261
60,270
35

64,566

(6,600)
67,966
34,857

(1,710)

101,113
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE_Z—ZF+_A=+—HIEE

11. Income Tax Expense (Continued)

11.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

Income tax arising in the PRC and other jurisdictions is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Pursuant to the relevant law and regulations in the PRC, one
of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries is classified as an advance
technology entity, and entitled to 15% PRC enterprise income

tax for the three years, 2009 to 2011.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and the
Detailed Implementation Rules, distribution of the profits earned
by the PRC subsidiaries since 1 January 2008 is subject to
PRC withholding tax at the applicable tax rate of 5%.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled
to the profit before tax per the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the applicable income tax rate of
15.71% (2009: 15.48%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purpose

Under(over)provision in respect of prior
years

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Withholding tax on distributed earnings
of subsidiaries

Withholding tax on undistributed
earnings of PRC subsidiary

PRC land appreciation tax

Tax effect of PRC land appreciation tax

Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised

Others

Income tax expense for the year

BR A AR A

RERTSHE15.71%
(ZFTNF:
TABX 2 R T E

BAENHRBAZ G2

15.48% ) :EF3

BB e

EEFNEHRIDEMBEFE 2 (G ERFEH 2
16.5%51 & °

RHPBEREE Ti%&%?iZ% SHTRE
BRARIAERER 2 REFE

RIBHBE 2 B@ERER - AAE—EHE
MEBRREOBRLERNER IR T

AEQ T ——F I =FFH15% 2 FETE
fASHR ©

RIEFRESERSEEAREHRIGHIAE - 8=

ZEZNF—F—Bi - DIk R B R T HRE

B i NI ZB 12 6% 0 38 A B R B R B TR0 AR 1S
1 o

BIEFERETE EERE)

REER m%%mzmﬁ%g
B

FEMB AR RS
TEIOFT1S T

AR B (E R
AR R ER B ISR 2
R BT EA R FER S 518

IRBHZ

Hit
REZRFH

Note: The average income tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2010
and 2009 represents the weighted average tax rate of the operations
in different jurisdictions on the basis of the relevant amounts of net
profits before taxation and the relevant rate for the year.
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NEFZHERT P EGEZEKER 2B
Blm Al 2 $ERANT ¢
2010 2009
—E2-FF —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET Tt
489,164 408,446
76,865 63,246
8,576 5,285
(32) (326)
56,148 (6,600)
11,565 4,642
7,381 24,857
10,000 10,000
5,014 _
(725) -
- (690)
(584) 699
174,208 101,113
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B mRME

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-_ZT-ZTF+_A=1+—ALEFE

Frig®isc e

11. Income Tax Expense (Continued) 11.

In the prior years, the IRD issued profits tax assessments
in respect of the disallowance of offshore profit claims in
aggregate of approximately HK$55,050,000 against a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company for the years of assessment
2001/2002 to 2005/2006. The Group lodged objections with
the IRD and the IRD agreed to defer payment of the tax claimed
completely subject to the subsidiary in question purchasing
tax reserve certificates for those years of assessment. The
tax reserve certificates amounting to HK$32,402,000 were
purchased by the relevant subsidiary in prior years.

The Group received a notice of determination from the IRD
dated 10 March 2011 for the additional profit tax assessments
with the tax effect amounting to HK$135,889,000 in respect
of the disallowance of offshore profit claim HK$54,955,000
together with the non-deduction of management fee, prescribed
fixed assets and statutory depreciation allowance amounting
to HK$80,934,000 for the years of assessment 2001/2002 to
2005/2006. The Group is planning to lodge an appeal (the “Tax
Appeal”) to the Board of Review as the Group believes that
there are reasonable grounds to substantiate the claims.

Based on professional advice and recent court rulings of
relevant precedent cases related to offshore profit claims, the
Group has made provisions of HK$55,000,000 (2009: Nil)
equivalent to the amount of the tax dispute in relation to the
offshore profit claims in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2010, which represents the
Company’s directors’ present best estimate of the potential tax
liability. In respect of the unprovided additional tax assessments,
the directors are of the opinion that the Group has reasonable
ground to claim for the deduction and accordingly they believe
that there was no material underprovision of tax liabilities as at
31 December 2010.

RBAFE  REFERBAARGEZEWB A
A H 2 TR EINGE AR 2 FIS BT
HR =TT /ST -_FEZ-_FTTH =
EERFEB B A% 2 BFEH 755,050,000
e AREERRERIRERE - mBBR/A
EERAMBBNEETHR - SR ZBA
RIEMZEFEZIZBEERNS - RBAEF
T 2SR A5 AE32,402,000/8 T © B MR
BB ARIEE -

i

REEZERERIE BRIETE 2 BINER
i 4 4)135,889,000 8 T L A A =T ——
F=ZA+HZARBAE -  AABBTIRHF=
L BB _F_FTTH—TENF
i 8 2 35 9N i 7 B R 54,955,000 7% 7T 42 [
80,934,000 L 2 A KR ERE - FIABEEE
EREETE R - NEBRAEAEEERE
AZBER - RRAEZEZE SR LR ([R5
E&FD e

BIEFHEE R R EBBARING T B R ER
HR AEBERZ-ZZE—TF+_A=1+—H
fEfr & IS ARR 2R A 1EH 55,000,000/ L (=&
ENGF  B) 2 BREREREESRINGEF R ER
ZBBANCRE) - BRABEIAARESEA
HEBEEHIBEAB Y &EMET - ABE 2B
HETZNS  EFRAAEBEEEEEER
ERIIR R - Bt - FERE  RZE—F
F+-A=+—H AKBETESAHREARE
BETR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-_ZT-ZTF+_A=1+—ALEFE

12. Profit for the Year 12. KXEEEF

2010 2009
—ZT-FF —ZETNF
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit for the year has been arrived at N AR
after charging: TAIEIE
Auditor’s remuneration 2 EREM B & 2,680 2,628
Cost of inventories (2009: excluding FERAN(—ZTNGF : TBEEFE
allowance for inventories of 525,000,000 7T)
HK$25,000,000) 6,825,125 4,951,090
Depreciation and amortisation on: AT SI8 2 38 Rt gy
Property, plant and equipment VI~ BB Skt 451,448 368,536
Development expenditure included in BRI HGIABEEKAE)
cost of sales - 1,168
Technical know-how included in R Ee 2 A0 adk (G ASHERA)
cost of sales 5,665 5,665
Trademarks included in cost of sales FEIZE(GTASHERA) 42 79
457,155 375,448
Operating lease rental in respect of HEMFE 2 &EMNES
rented premises 5,827 6,180
Release of prepaid lease payments fRBRIENAERIEA 3,379 4,033
Staff costs, inclusive of directors’ BTRA  BIEZERHE -
remuneration:
Salaries and other benefits FeRHEeER 630,023 402,983
Retirement benefits scheme RINRAFTEIHER
contributions 37,044 27,691
667,067 430,674

KRB ZFEHE R £160,611,0008 T( — =
S : 88,846,000/ 7T ) °

The Company’s profit for the year was HK$160,611,000 (2009:
HK$88,846,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-_ZT-ZTF+_A=1+—ALEFE

13. Directors’ Remuneration 13. EEME
Lam Wai
Wah, Steven
(Chairman Wong Pong Cheung Tat  Li Jian Hua
and Chun, James Sang, James (Production Chung Ip Cho
Managing  (Executive (Marketing  Managing Kam Ting, Heung
Director) ~ Director)  Director)  Director) Kwong Spencer Kai Sing Total
nEE REE 3
(FER B (WBEE (£EY
EEALE)  (BER) E3) #3408 it 2L R i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THL T TAT THL T TAL THL
2010 ~2-%2%
Directors' fees: EENS
Executive 1T - - - - - - _ _
Independent non- BT
executive - - - - 240 120 120 480
Otheremoluments paidto ¥ F ¥&17E52
the executive directors: Hitfs
Selaries and other benefits &4 RE (&7 3,369 1,481 1,870 2,040 - - - 8,760
Performance related HEEHNY
incentive payments e (W)
(note) 12,769 990 1,500 1,700 - - - 16,959
Contributions to RIVERIFT IR
retirement benefit
scheme 24 24 24 12 - - - 84
16,162 2,495 3,394 3,752 240 120 120 26,283
2009 “EENE
Directors’ fees: EELGE
Executive #H1T = - - - - _ _ _
Independent non- BT
executive - - - - 88 50 50 188
Otheremoluments paidto 1 ¥&17E52
the executive directors: Hitis
Selaries and other benefits 4 RE &7 1,950 924 1,431 1718 - - - 6,023
Performance related HEEHNY
incentive payments %4 ()
(note) 6,282 479 635 775 - - - 8,171
Contributions to RINVRRIRT IR
retirement benefit
scheme 24 24 24 12 - - - 84
8,256 1,427 2,090 2,505 88 50 50 14,466
Note: The performance related incentive payments are determined as a Mic : EEERN RS DNIRAEEHEE_T—TFR

“ERAE+ A=+ -HALEFEEEREREE
WMz —FELHIERE -

percentage of the turnover and operating profit of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2010 and 2009.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-_ZT-ZTF+_A=1+—RALEFE

14. Employees’ Emoluments 14. EEME
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the AEBEREZRRFMALTY  OER(ZTZN
Group, four (2009: four) were directors of the Company whose F:NB)BARRIZES HMleFEENE
emoluments are set out in note 13 above. The emoluments of XHF13 c EBp—R(ZTTNF : —B)AT
the remaining one (2009: one) individual was as follows: ZEnT
2010 2009
—E-FfF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET T
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 2,095 1,787
Performance related incentive payments EFER 7 B 171 171
Contributions to retirement benefit RIREFFT 2R
scheme 12 12
2,278 1,970
Their emoluments were within the following bands: ElEEME 2 BNT
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNEF
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEHE EE&E
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 70 22,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 £ 2,500,000 7T 1 -
15. Dividends 15. B2
2010 2009
—E-EF ZEENF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Dividend recognised as distribution RAFEERAED RIS
during the year:
2010 Interim dividend of 22 HK cents ZE-TE R HRE S22
(2009 Interim dividend of 17 HK cents) (ZZEZAF 2P HRE
per share FIRA7E) 110,717 80,399
2009 Final dividend of 10 HK cents ZEENF 2 REREFAR1073L
(2009: 2008 final dividend of 1 HK (ZZTNE : —TT)N\F2
cents) per share RNHARR SRR B 50,318 4,728
161,035 85,127
The interim dividends in aggregate of 22 HK cents (2009: 17 HK KN T D R IR 2 % 17 503,219,527 A% -
cents) per share amounting to approximately HK$110,717,000 503,269,527 A% } 503,269,527 iX L@k s+ & -
were paid and payable in 2010 to shareholders on the register MR_ZT—TFA-+HB  —T-FFH
of members of the Company at the close of business on 25 A+t+tHEE-Z——F— A+ BEEEEA
June 2010, 17 September 2010 and 19 January 2011, based RERYARNBIIRRE BT 2R R ER—
on 503,219,527, 503,269,527 and 503,269,527 ordinary T-TEAHREFRIEBIN(ZZEZNE :
shares in issue respectively. 177841) - & 4£49110,717,00078 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

HEZ

15.

16.

F-TE+- A=t ALAE

Dividends (continueq)

The final dividend of 1 HK cents per share, based on
2,767,982,398 ordinary shares after subdivision of shares
and bonus ordinary shares, in respect of the year ended 31
December 2010 (2009: final dividend of 10 HK cents, based on
503,179,527 in respect of the year ended 31 December 2009)
has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval
by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is
based on the following data:

Earnings

Earnings for the purposes of basic and
diluted earnings per share

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purposes of basic
earnings per share

pelibe 4=

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Share options issued by the Company

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purposes of diluted
earnings per share

bl !

The calculation of basic earnings per share and diluted earnings
per share have not reflected the subdivision of ordinary shares
and bonus ordinary shares as approved in the extraordinary
general meeting held on 19 January 2011.

BELTBRHEYE
RARFTEITZ BRHE

REtEESRE RN 2 ETFHE

15.

16.

EEEERRROFARBTARETERE Y
2,767,982,398R MR H  IkKEBE=T—
TFEF+ A=+ —HIEFEZRAKRBF/R1E
WZTTNF  HEZZENFTZA=1+—
A 1L 8 2 503,179,527 IR i% {7 51 E AR B 2.
FRA0BL) - ML RN ERERRAF K
o R -

BRER

FRERER &G HREE RN TR T HIBUE

5

e ESRERREERN 2 &

REtESRERBH 2 iEFHE

g

2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHT
314,956 307,333

BB R
2010 2009
—B-BF —TENF
496,626,911 472,894,322
1,352,749 250,238
497,979,660 473,144,560

STESRERRN 5 EE 2 F IR R R
REZB——F—A+IABZ2BRRERHAS L4t
JEZ PRARE B A AT R A o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-_ZT-TF+_A=1+—ALEFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment 17. Y% - BERRME
Furniture, Properties
Landand fixturesand  Plantand Motor under
buildings  equipment  machinery vehicles development Total
B
THREF RERRE BEREES RE  BRRUE a%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TEL TEL TEL THL THL

cosT HRAE
At 1 January 2009 RZZTENE—A—H

- as originally stated —BR27| 872,620 376,527 4,601,389 32,488 162,832 6,045,856

~ prior year adjustment —EERE 10,649 - - - - 10,649

- as restated &7 883,269 376,527 4,601,389 32,488 162,832 6,056,505
Transfer g 91,828 - - - (91,828 -
Additions NE 648 35,549 225,174 - 73,765 385,136
Disposals/write off & /s - (1,190 (18,501) (724) - (20,415)
At 31 December 2009 RZEENE+-A=1—H 975,745 410,886 4,808,062 31,764 144,769 6,371,226
Currency redlignment EEHE 27,302 14,974 74,954 385 2912 120,527
Additions NE - 43,547 398,063 928 96,720 539,258
Transfer B 18,407 - - - (18,407) -
Transfer to non-current assets ERERENEERD

held for sale (note &) BE(MTa) - - - - (57,961) (57,961)
Disposals/write off e /M = (17.906)  (102,561) (1,339) - (121,806)
At 31 December 2010 W-E-Z5+-H=1+-A 1,021,454 451,501 5,178,518 31,738 168,033 6,851,244
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT #ERRE
At 1 January 2009 RZBZNE—-R—H

- as originally stated ~RAZS| 114,416 200,712 1,493,787 22,912 - 1,831,827

~ prior year adjustment —HERE 1,638 - - - - 1,638

- as restated — 3 116,054 200,712 1,493,787 22,912 - 1,833,465
Provided for the year EERE 25,645 34,007 306,061 2,823 - 368,536
Eliminated on disposals/write off HE /iHEh - (177) (7,711) (657) - (8,445)
At 31 December 2009 R-EENF+-A=t-H 141,699 234,542 1,792,137 25,178 - 2,193,556
Currency redlignment SR 2,502 8,061 66,370 353 - 77,786
Provided for the year FERE 26,313 32,869 390,304 1,962 - 451,448
Eliminated on disposals/write off HE /g (1,860) (9,616) (88,173) (775) - (100,424)
At 31 December 2010 R-E-Z5+-H=1-A 168,654 265,856 2,161,138 26,718 - 2,622,366
CARRYING VALUES FEE
At 31 December 2010 W-E-Z5+-HA=1+-A 852,800 185,645 3,017,380 5,020 168,033 4,228,878
At 31 December 2009 RZBZNE+=A=1—H 834,046 176,344 3,015,925 6,586 144,769 4,177,670
At 1 January 2009 W-EZNE-F—-H 767,215 175,815 3,107,602 9,576 162,832 4,223,040
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE_Z-TF+-_A=+—RHIFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 17. Y% - BERRE#®)
Notes: BffeE -
() Following the sales of certain staff quarters of the Group during the (@) FAHEALEBEETETIRTSR  BEEA
year, such properties with a carrying amount of HK$63,411,000 63,411,000/ 702 B ¥ (BiEENHEZKIEM
(comprising prepaid lease payment and land and building) have been THREF)EENDBEARBELEERDEE -

reclassified to non-current assets held for sales.

(b) The cost of buildings is depreciated over forty years or the terms of (b) BFZRANESEAN+F TG HBHEET
the respective leases, whichever is the shorter, using the straight-line B (ARG EBE)ITE -
method.
The other items of property, plant and equipment, other than HimE  BMERSEZEE (BEERDYEIN)
properties under development, are depreciated on a reducing PABREEERE » A TN E R EIE

balance method at the following rates per annum:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15% to 50% R - RERZE 15%Z50%
Plant and machinery 11% to 40% R R s 11%Z240%
Motor vehicles 25% to 45% RE 25%%45%
(c) The carrying value of the Group’s property interests shown above © AN EEY RS ERERE
comprises:

31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009

—E-2F —TTNE —ZThEF

+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H —A—H

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET FHET

(restated) (restated)

(&7) (&7))

Leasehold properties in Hong Kong ~ RiIBFHBRNESTEEE 2
held under medium-term leases HEmZE 17,625 18,162 18,700
Properties in the PRC held under REFHANEFEREES
medium-term leases ZHEEME 1,003,208 960,653 911,347
1,020,833 978,815 930,047
18. Prepaid Lease Payments 18. FENHEERIE

31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009

—E-FF —ZEThF —ZETNEF

+=ZA=+—H +=ZA=+—H —H—H

HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000

FER BT FAET

(restated) (restated)

(&%) (&%)

The Group’s prepaid lease AEBERNEE
payments comprise: FIEBLE

Land use rights in the PRC held  1B#Ed BifE 497 B354

under medium-term lease 2 i E R 157,625 146,514 124,332
Analysed for reporting FERE B
purposes as: ST :
Non-current asset IERBEE 153,895 143,062 120,832
Current asset BN EE 3,730 3,452 3,500
157,625 146,514 124,332
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19. Intangible Assets 19. BILEE
Development Technical
expenditure know-how Trademarks Total
BRXE BrEEmE [ ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL THL THL
COST BAE
At 1 January 2009 R-ZEENF—A—H 43,602 22,661 1,548 67,811
Additions NE = - 22 22
At 31 December 2009 and RIEFAF+_A=1t—HK
31 December 2010 —E-ZEF+-A=1+—H 43,602 22,661 1,570 67,833
AMORTISATION By
At 1 January 2009 RZETNF—H—R 42,434 5,665 1,405 49,504
Provided for the year REZRE 1,168 5,665 79 6,912
At 31 December 2009 RZEENF+-A=1+—H 43,602 11,330 1,484 56,416
Provided for the year REEEE - 5,665 42 5,707
At 31 December 2010 —E-FF+-A=1+—-H 43,602 16,995 1,526 62,123
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2010 —E-E5+-fA=+—-H - 5,666 44 5,710
At 31 December 2009 RZETAF+=R=1+—H - 11,331 86 11,417
At 1 January 2009 RZEENF—A—H 1,168 16,996 143 18,307

Development expenditure, technical know-how and trademarks BB - FITEZEMNE R EIR A B F#E - #

are amortised on a straight-line basis over 4 years. SHER RPN o
20. Available-For-Sale Investments 20. AIEHERE
31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—E-2F ZZTThF ZTENF
+=A=+—-H +=ZA=+—8H —H—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHTT FHT
Unlisted equity shares, at cost JE RIS D (IR ANE) 10,500 10,500 10,500
Less: Impairment loss recognised & : BHEZRIEEE (10,500) (10,500 (5,250)
- - 5,250
The investments represent the unlisted equity shares issued by ZEREBERE - RARNFLABBEITAELTER
private entities in Japan. The investments are stated at cost less & - ARHEEERAFEZHETEERKN - A
impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates NAIEERF/EANTE T SETE - BURK
is so significant that the directors of the Company are of the NMERBBEANE
opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably.
The directors have assessed the expected future cash flows RZE—ZTERZZETANF+A=+—8"
expected to be generated and an impairment loss was fully EEERAEERBEEZAKRERE - B

provided against the cost as at 31 December 2010 and 2009. EEREERBHEREES RS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE_Z-TF+-_A=+—RHIFE

21. Inventories

Raw materials R
Work in progress R
Finished goods BN
22. LOANS RECEIVABLE
Fixed-rate loans receivable EEEWE R
— At contemporary lending rate — R EARRIT

iR RIERE 3K
R (R RED)
— RFI = 4%5T (HiEE2)
% B U E R (HFES)

quoted by the People’s Bank
of China (Note 1)
— At 4% (Note 2)
Interest-free loans receivable
(Note 3)

Less: allowance for loans B R E R (T 5E4)

receivable (Note 4)

Aging of loans receivable which are past due but not impaired:

B0RLAA
—FAE

Within 60 days
Over 1 year

21. F&

31.12.2010
—z-=F
+=A=+-H
HK$’000
T
219,343
390,323
139,206

748,872

31.12.2009
—ETNEF
+tZA=+—H
HK$’000
TET

165,981
403,455
123,434

692,870

22, EIRER

31.12.2010
—2-8%
+=A=+-H
HK$'000
FET

24,762

24,762

(24,762)

31.12.2009
—ETNEF
+tZA=+—H
HK$’000
FHET

17,045

24,762

41,807

(24,762)

17,045

1.1.2009
—ZETNF
—HA—H
HK$'000
FBT
202,230
322,320
183,794

708,344

1.1.2009
—TETNF
—HA—H
HK$’000
FHBT

22,727
5,990

24,762

58,479

53,479

EBHERBEZ BKRESRKROITAT

31.12.2010
—g-%%
+=A=+-8
HK$’000
FiE R

31.12.2009
—ETNF
+=—A=+—~”
HK$’'000
FAT

17,045
17,045

1.1.2009
—ETNF
—H—H
HK$’000
Tt

33,932

33,932
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22. LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes:

The amount was unsecured and repayable within one year from the
date when the loan agreement was entered into. The loan was fully
repaid during the year ended 31 December 2010.

The amounts were unsecured, bore fixed interest at a rate of 4% per
annum and were repayable within one year from the date when the
loan agreement was entered into. The loan was fully repaid in the
year ended 31 December 2009.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and are expected to be
received within one year from the date when the loan agreement was
entered into.

During the year, the directors reviewed the carrying values of the
loans receivable. The recoverable amount of the receivables is
estimated by the directors based on the expected future cash flow
repaid from these receivables. As at 31 December 2010, allowance
for loans receivable of HK$24,762,000 (31 December 2009:
HK$24,762,000) had been recognised.

23. Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables

FEURRIR

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts ¥ : REEEE

Other receivables, deposits and

Hits RUIE ~ T2 M

prepayment NG
Total trade and other receivables &R IE 2 E i fE L
SRIBKREE

Included in the other receivables are purchase discounts from
suppliers with aggregate carrying amount of HK$126,197,000
(2009: HK$142,942,000), other PRC tax recoverable of
HK$82,720,000 (2009: HK$7,305,000) and temporary payment
to PRC tax authority amounting to HK$24,857,000 in 2009.
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BWRER#)
pst

1. ZARIR RSB R AR BRI ER] L B AR —F
AKE - ZREFRERBE_T-ZTF+_-A4
=t RUEFERATREE -

2. ZHEREER - RETFNE4%TEBERNE
Rip#a] L AR —FAKRE - ZEREREBE
“ETAFT A=+ RILFENBRREE -

3. ZHRBEREIEE - 28 BEMARERBA L
A8 —FRkE -

4. FERN - EFCEHEREROEEE - EFRIE
BEZSEEFENEHAREERSAER
tEKZENATKRESHE - R2E—FF+=-4
=+—08 ' ERERERTEREE24,762,0007%
T(ZEZAF+-A=+—8 : 24,762,000/8
JT) °

23. FEWERIE & H it FEURFIE

31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—B-FF —TTNF —TTNF
+=A=t—-R +=A=t+—H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Fitt FHT T
1,585,976 832,638 610,918
(7,421) (10,058) (6,745)
1,578,555 822,580 604,173
275,271 221,910 45,545
1,853,826 1,044,490 649,718

Hoh e W RIE A B 15 AR BRI 1B 4&126,197,00078
TT(ZZT N : 142,942,000 7T ) 2 FEUL (L fE
P EREE T~ H b A B A] Y8l B 18.82,720,000
BIL(ZZTAEF : 7,305,000 0) ME-ZZ
JUEE ) A B A5 1L A 4 1 2 B8 524,857,000
TLZERIR o
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23. Trade and Other Receivables (continueq) 23. FEWERIE R H b EEURFIE ()
The Group’s trade receivables that are denominated in REBULEAEE BRI EEE U EHES
currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant group B EWERIBESIT ¢

entities are set out below:

31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—E-TF —ZETNF —ZETNF
+=A=+—-H8 +=ZA=+—8H —HA—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET
Denominated in HK$ LA TTEHE 64,458 92,377 61,879
Denominated in Euro ABTEHE 11,470 5,221 1,347
The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to 90 days to REBKTEEFHEFNFI0E0KXHFHE
its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade EH o RERE B 2 EWERIE (M REHRIZEE
receivables presented based on the invoice date at the end of HEIZF) MR 2 BRER DT T
the reporting period, net of the allowance for doubtful debts at
the reporting date:
31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—E-EF —EENEF —EENF
+=A=+—-8 +=A=+—8H —HA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FAT FET
Within 60 days BOKIAA 1,503,764 794,191 546,827
61 to 90 days 61290k 44,105 6,635 28,337
More than 90 days Q0APAE 30,686 21,754 29,009
1,578,555 822,580 604,173
Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed REMEMFERR - NEBSTHBERS
the potential customer’s credit quality and defined credit rating ZEEEENBESREEZEETHRE - 4
limits for each customer. Limits attributed to customers are FTREEZEERESFES— X - RBEALE
reviewed once a year. 76% (2009: 79%) of the trade receivables g 76%(ZEBZENGF : 79%) Z EUERIEY
are neither past due nor impaired having settlement subsequent RBEAKRE - BT WEE/R G -
to the reporting date and with no past history of defaults in
payment.
Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors AEBZEKBNKRELGARTEREREES
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$377,657,000 (2009: 377,657,000/ T (ZZZ N4 ¢ 176,779,000/
HK$176,779,000) which are past due at the reporting date TL) 2 FEURERR - ZEFIERREB BB -
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as HRECESEZRTEEREHEZSHDNES
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the ATURE - B AN 5 BN A R B R B R o
amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does not REEN Eph L AR (A -

hold any collateral over these balances.
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23. Trade and Other Receivables (continueq) 23. FEWERIE R H b EEURFIE ()
Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but 2B HA{B R R {E 2 FE W BR 18 2 AR iR
not impaired
31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—E-TF —ZETNF —ZETNF
t=A=t—-8A +ZA=t+—H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHIT FHIT
Within 60 days BOKIAA 302,866 148,390 201,398
61 to 90 days 61290k 44,105 6,635 28,337
More than 90 days 90K 30,686 21,754 29,009
Total 1axs 377,657 176,779 258,744
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REBRENRE
31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—E-FF —ZETNhEF —ETNEF
+=A=+—-8B +=A=+—H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHTT T
Balance at beginning of the year — F¥)45 ¢4 10,058 6,745 9,150
Allowance for doubtful debts BRI ARIEFER
recognised on trade receivables ~ REREYE 1,258 3,332 5178
Amounts written off as YNl El
uncollectible IE (3,895) (19) (7,583)
Balance at end of the year FIREEGR 7,421 10,058 6,745
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually HREBARBEEREERESRF LRV BRE
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of # ARAEEZRERBHEEFAERELE
HK$1,258,000 (2009: HK$3,332,000) which the debtors have 1,258,000/ (=T N4F 3,332,000 7T)
financial difficulties in repaying the outstanding balances. The O ERWIRIE o ANE BN MR SR
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. FEEREE -
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24. Derivative Financial Instruments

24, fTESWMIA

Assets Liabilities
BE 8
31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009

—Z-Ef ZZTNEF ZZTNE —Z-Ef g 3 —ZZTNE

t-A=t-B +=A=1-H -A-B +zZA=+-B +=A=t+-H —A-A

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FETL TAL TAL THRL TAL THL

Foreign currency forward contracts ~ SMERHIAH) - = 2,152 - = 1,043
Interest rate swaps Fl i - - - 1,746 7,414 7,688
- - 2,152 1,746 7,414 8,731

The derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. The fair value of derivative
financial instruments is estimated using discounted cash flow
analysis with reference to the market rate of foreign currency
and/or interest rate at the reporting date for remaining duration
of the outstanding contracts.

(i) Major terms of interest rate swap agreement outstanding
as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 are as

follow:
Notional amount Maturity
IREE BHHR
HK$100,000,000 March 2011
100,000,000/ 7T —E——%=H
HK$100,000,000 March 2011
100,000,000/ 7T —E——%=H

(i)  Major terms of foreign currency forward contracts as at
1January 2009 are as follows:

Notional amount Maturity
REE EHHAR
US$12,000,000 January 2009
12,000,0003 7T —ZTTNF—HA
US$12,000,000 January 2009
12,000,0003 7T —ZTTNF—HA

TEESMTARRERARRZRFEGSE - T4
EMIAZATEDSENEZTSERR,/
HARTTRA D2 RIBHRN|RE B 2 X - F
RFRBSRESNEE -

) FEEHBER_FT-FER_FTNF
ToA=T—BZEEERET ¢

Term

R

From 3 months Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) to fixed rate of 2.39% per annum
NFIMEABTBRITEERFE((FERTRAERSE
Bl 7E F A1 %2.39%

From 5.25% per annum minus 3.95%, subject to an
adjustment based on the 3 months performance of
HIBOR to 3 months HIBOR

I 7 %5.25%%3.95% (R IR IE3E A FHERIT R
FERREL AR Z3EASBRITEERE

i) SNERHEAONR-_ZTAF—HA—HZE

BRI -

Term
15X

Sell Renminbi (RMB) buy United States dollars (“US$”)
at 6.630 to 6.643

6.630E6.643 2 HELARKE (AR DEAET
(M=sxl)

Sell US$/buy RMB at 6.762 to 6.7625
M6.762%E6.7625 2 BB HET, EAARE
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-_ZT-TF+_A=1+—ALEFE

25. Bank Balances and Cash 25, IRITHEEREAES
The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated in REBULEAEE BRI EEE U EHES
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant BZRITEFRIBEEIMT

group entities are set out below:

Japanese Yen HK$ uUs$ RMB
H BT ETT AR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FHT FHT

As at 31 December 2010 N-_E—FE
+=A=+—H 4 135,197 46,826 46,829

As at 31 December 2009 RZZETNF
+=—A=+—8H 1 50,159 17,093 -

As at 1 January 2009 RZZETNF
—H—H 14 26,392 138 -

Bank balances carry interest at variable rates which ranged  $R1T&FEN F0.01%%0.46% ( —ZEZH4E  0.01%

from 0.01% to 0.46% (2009: 0.01% to 0.21%) per annum. 20.21%) 2 FBFEFEES -
26. Non-Current Asset Held for Sales 26. FEHEFRBEE
31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—E-FF ZEENF —ETNEF
+=BA=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H —H—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FHIT FHT
Leasehold properties in the PRC R #Erh EAFA 497 F
held under medium-term leases B 2 EYE 14,535 = =
During the year ended 31 December 2010, the directors of REBEE-T—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE K
the Company approved the disposal of certain properties AREEHALNEUTHRIEEIREZET
which were previously developed as staff quarters. Leasehold Y% - BREE 563,411,000 T2 HEWE
properties with a carrying amount of HK$63,411,000 have WIENHERBEARYE - BERZEEFH
been reclassified from prepaid lease payment and properties, ¥ - HR48,876,0008 TR FERLE - REAR
plant and equipment, of which HK$48,876,000 was sold during 69,218,000/ 7T ° & P15 2 45 F| (FER MR R HL
the year for consideration of HK$69,218,000. The net profit 18)#913,029,000/8 7T - WHERAFEE & A o

generated from disposal after deducting the related taxes, was
approximately HK$13,029,000 and was recognised in profit for
the year.
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27. Trade and Other Payables

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

Within 60 days
61 to 90 days
More than 90 days

60H A
61£E90H
#2390 H

The credit period on purchases of goods ranges from 60-
90 days. The Group has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit

timeframe.

The Group’s trade payables that are denominated in currencies
other than functional currencies of the relevant group entities

are set out below:

Denominated in HK$
Denominated in Japanese Yen
Denominated in EURO

LA TTATHE
LABEHE
LABUTEHE

27. BEARRERHMEMNTKE

RBERARREZ A2 2 BNREREK D

T
31.12.2010 31.12.2009
—B-BF —ETNF
tT=A=t—-A +ZRA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiEx TET
766,965 372,472
168,368 164,608
64,905 90,464
1,000,238 627,544

1.1.2009
—ZETNF
—HA—H
HK$'000
FBT

283,500
130,837
376,992

791,329

REBEMNEEPNF60E90H - RERTIE
g MBRAREEREE  MBRNEEH

WS ATE A ROR

FEENEHAEEERBRNGEEEIAIN TS

BZENERREEINMT

31.12.2010 31.12.2009
—E-FF —ETNF
+=ZBA=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
214,969 178,910
91,130 138,526

160 Sl

1.1.2009
—ETNF
—HA—H
HK$’'000
FHBT

142,221
352,966
37
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28. Bank and Other Borrowings, Unsecured

Bank loans RITER

Trust receipt loans EFEUBURE R

Other loans HaER

The Group’s bank and AEENEHEEESE
other borrowings that e B HE AN 2 i
are denominated in currencies B Z R1T R EAM
other than the functional EEHH| T

currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

Denominated in HK$ LA TTATE

Denominated in Japanese Yen LAREFHE

Carrying amount payable*: FERTRRTE(E" -

Within one year R—FR

More than one year, but not —E B BERRER
exceeding two years

More than two years, but not MEBBRAER

exceeding five years

Carrying amount of bank loans TERRERARLT

that are not repayable within —FREREES
one year from the end of AR ESKEE

the reporting period but contain ~ 4R1TE 3% (F R i &
arepayment on demand clause  &f&9H) 2 EEE(AE
(shown under current liabilities)

Carrying amount of bank loans Hi2 R EHEH (5
that are repayable on demand mENAER)MAER
due to breach of loan covenants  {E&IRF(EE 7 R1T
(shown under current liabilities) B RAEE

Less: Amount due within B IR mEIRER 2
one year shown under —FRE|HIFRIA

current liabilities

Amount due after one year — 14 FI8F0E

* The amount due are based on scheduled repayment
dates set out in loan agreements.

All the Group’s borrowings are variable-rate borrowings which
carry interest at HIBOR or London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”) plus certain basis points or interest rate of 4.8% per
annum. Interest is repricing every three months and the range
of effective interest rates is at 1.02% to 2.93% (2009: 1.02% to
2.90%) per annum.
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28. RITREMEER » BER

31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—E-ZF —ETNF “TETNF
+TZE=+—H +ZHA=+—H —H—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER THET THET
(restated) (restated)

(&751) (E51)

1,409,067 1,373,862 1,744,414
827,936 635,290 333,795
26,469 28,918 34,410
2,263,472 2,038,070 2,112,619
1,183,853 1,140,699 1,817,633
57,522 76,233 85,860
1,559,610 1,596,494 1,108,348
281,290 8,319 13,845
328,895 6,456 6,719
2,169,795 1,611,269 1,128,912
93,677 60,009 100,005

- 366,792 883,702
2,263,472 2,038,070 2,112,619
(1,653,287) (2,023,295) (2,092,055)
610,185 14,775 20,564

* A HFIRTDBRIBENE K E 2 FREER
B -

REBEREEESEZEEE  HIREBRT
EEFEXGBERITRERE ((RBRITRE
WEDIETEZKENERIS%TE - FEE
=EAEE  BBRMEZFEENT1.02%E
2.93% (=TT NF : 1.02%ZE2.90%) °
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29. Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities

For the purpose of presenting in the consolidated statements of
financial position, the following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets

EEHIARE
BT IREE

29. EEBIEEE AfE
RNGEEFBHRRERT LS - AU B2HME
ZIEETIRERDITAT -

31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009

—E-TF —ZETNF —ZETNF
t=A=+—-8 +=A=t—H —A—H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET THT FHET
35,442 34,897 29,136
(8,451) (8,225) (754)

26,991 26,672 28,382

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

prior years:

At 1 January 2009
(Credit) charge to profit or loss
for the year

At 31 December 2009
Reversal of deferred tax liability
upon distribution of profits

(Credit) charge to profit or loss
for the year

At 31 December 2010

il & 18 IR T
HEAE

REEBHT
(&%)

RZE—TF

+=A=1+—§

Accelerated
tax
depreciation
iz
BEHE
HK$'000
FAET

29,136

(4,239)

24,897

545

25,442

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$103,720,000 (2009: HK$55,399,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Unrecognised tax losses may be carried

forward indefinitely.

The Group has no significant unrecognised temporary
differences on undistributed profits of its subsidiaries at the end

of the reporting period.

AR R NN E BEERIER
ECAE)REEBWT :

Allowance for

receivables Undistributed
and profits of
inventories subsidiaries Total
PEWRIE R i)
FERE R EEF k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHT FHT FHT
(754) - 28,382
(7,471) 10,000 (1,710)
(8,225) 10,000 26,672
- (10,000) (10,000)
(226) 10,000 10,319
(8,451) 10,000 26,991

REBHKR AEB2ASHHBRKEEIE
103,720,000/ 7L ( ZFZ N F : 55,399,000/
70) Al AYEESE AR R F o AR RBEMEET R AR
FRR - A ER XSS IERRECHES
EE o RWER 2 BT E 18 o ] PR A 45 eE o

RMEIR - AEEME R FARD B I &
BARRHERERZR
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30. Share Capital 30. g
Number of shares Share capital
g ;&N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-FF —ZETNEF —EB-FF —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHT
Ordinary shares of ERAEEABITZ
HK$0.1 each mAL
Authorised: JATE
At 1 January and R—A—BX&
31 December +—-—HA=+—H 650,000,000 650,000,000 65,000 65,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRAT
At 1 January ®n—A—HB 472,939,527 472,879,527 47,294 47,288
Issue of new shares BB RIE Wk
pursuant to a subscription BITHR
agreement (note a) (FffzEa) 30,000,000 - 3,000 =
Exercise of share options 1T RS AR 330,000 60,000 33 6
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 503,269,527 472,939,527 50,327 47,294
Note a:  Pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 10 March 2010 Mizxra: RIBAATHEREAIZIAPHA-ZS—TF=
entered into between the Company and the subscriber, A+ Bz RE W - 22 F30,000,0000% &A%
30,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company E{EO. 178 7T 2 #1 i AR T 4% T AR T L 3@ A% 8.1
were issued at a price of HK$8.1 per new ordinary share. The BT BIRET - RGN _T—ZTF=F+N
transactions were completed on 18 March 2010. The new HEK - FiEBERAEATEHERERNE
ordinary shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all R o
aspects.
Details of the exercise of share options are set out in note 35. TR I AR 2 FE IR E A M RESS ©
Capital Risk Management 31. EXEBER

31.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from the prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 28 (which is net of
cash and cash equivalents) and equity, comprising issued share
capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company reviews the capital structure
periodically. As a part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associates with each class
of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends and new share issues as well
as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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32. Financial Instruments

a.

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including &K% fEU B (B3
cash and cash equivalents) ReMSEFMEER)

Available-for-sale investments Al ERE
Derivative financial instruments TEEmI A
Financial liabilities SREaE

Amortised cost BESHR AN

Derivative financial instruments ~ $T44&fT A

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank
balances and cash, loans receivable, derivative financial
instruments, available-for-sale investments, bank and
other borrowings, bank overdraft, trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

The management monitors and manages the financial
risk relating to the Group through internal risk assessment
which analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of
risks. The risks include market risk (including currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented in a timely and effective
manner.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from the
prior year.

32. €I A

a. 2ZEIESE

31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—ET-FF ZETNF —ZETNF
+=ZA=+—-8 +=—A=+—H —A—H
HK$°000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FET FET FAET
2,686,591 1,507,822 1,349,801
- - 5,250
- - 2,752
2,686,591 1,507,822 1,357,803
3,628,771 2,896,333 3,022,617
1,746 7,414 8,731
3,630,517 2,908,747 3,031,348

b. SRIEAKREEBEERBXR

FAEEZFZ2ERMITARBRITETRR
T BEER  TTESRTA  AIHEE
RE - ROTREMEER RITEX - BK
AR TR EL A R MK R IR DA % A< R TR R LA
e IR - £B TR ZFENSIRMERE
5 -

EIEE B BARERHE AT ER R EBRE
RENRZEHE KMERMEREAE
ERENSRER - ZERREETHE
2(BRREERR  FXERREAMER
Rk - FERRERBE SRR o RIE
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32. Financial Instruments (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Market risk

U

Currency risk
The Group undertakes certain transactions
denominated in foreign currencies which are
different from United States dollars and Renminbi,
the functional currency of the respective
subsidiaries.

The carrying amounts of foreign currency risk arising
from foreign currency denominated monetary assets

32. @@MIA#)
b. ¢REMRESEBEERBER(E)

SRR

() EERR
AEEZETRHUINESE © %
LHNE LIEREK B AR &
(ETLRARE) AN EEE -

RIER - LINETIEZ B EE
RE®BEES ZINERR 2 RE

and monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as B -
follows:
Liabilities Assets
af& BE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-TF ZETNE —ZT-TF ZITTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT FHET FH&T
Hong Kong dollar BT 1,398,786 1,327,023 198,040 142,536
Japanese Yen H 148,652 214,759 4 1
Euro BT 160 37 11,470 5,221
RMB AR - — 46,829 87,755

The Group continually assesses and monitors
the exposure to foreign exchange risk. The
management will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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32. Financial Instruments (Continued)

b.

32. @@MIA#)

Financial risk management objectives and b. 2BMEAKREEEERBEEKE)
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) miEEAR(E)
() Currency risk (Continued) () EERbg(E)
Sensitivity analysis BORZ T
The following table indicates the approximate TRETHRINEEE (BIZET) X
change in the Group’s profit after taxation for the BAEERSREAMEERRRZ
year in response to reasonably possible change in MR EA eI S EEE - M
the functional currency i.e. United States dollars BYAREBAFERBE SN PTE
to the relevant currencies which the Group have £ E) - RN IRIRE BIER
significant exposure at the reporting date. Since HIE AT EE TR - EEEW
Hong Kong dollars are pegged to US dollars T8 HA H 3R 75 [ 7 e B35 T BB KR B
under the Linked Exchange Rate System, the ZERINERR c REFFEAK
management does not expect significant foreign EITTLAIMINE 2 BB ©
currency exposure in relation to the exchange
rate fluctuation between Hong Kong dollars and
US dollars. The Group mainly exposes to foreign
currency risks other than US dollars.
2010 2009
—E-Zf “ZTNEF
United States United States
dollar Increase dollar Increase
strengthens (decrease) strengthens (decrease)
(weakens) in profit (weakens) in profit
EnAEEE) BEANEMORY) ExAEGEE) BEFEMNCRD)
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THT
Japanese Yen = 5% 6,206 5% 8,966
(5%) (6,206) (5%) (8,966)
Euro B % (661) 1% (43)
(7%) 661 (1%) 43
RMB ARHE 4% (1,564) 1% (733)
(4%) 1,564 (1%) 733
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32. Financial Instruments (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

U

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates
had occurred at the reporting date and had been
applied to each of the group entities’ exposure to
currency risk for non-derivative financial instruments
in existence at that date, and that all other variable
remain constant.

The stated changes represent the management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rate over the period until the
next annual balance sheet date. Results of the
analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the effects on each of the group
entities’ profit or loss measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong
Dollar at the exchange rate ruling at the reporting
date for presentation purposes. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2009.

In managements opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the currency risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Interest rate risk

(@  Non-derivative financial assets and financial
liabilities
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank balances and
variable-rate bank and other borrowings (see
notes 25 and 28 for details).

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity
risk management section of this note. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR
and LIBOR arising from the Group’s Hong
Kong dollar denominated borrowings. The
management considers the exposure to
interest rate risk in relation to bank balances is
insignificant due to the low interest rate.
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32. Financial Instruments (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(@  Non-derivative financial assets and financial

liabilities (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank borrowing. The
analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of liability outstanding at the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 100
basis point (2009: 100 basis point) increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit before taxation
for the year ended 31December 2010 would
decrease/increase by HK$22,635,000 (2009:
decrease/increase by HK$20,381,000).

(b)  Derivative financial assets and liabilities

In the prior year, the Group entered into
two interest rate swap contracts. These
derivatives are not accounted for under hedge
accounting. The Group is required to estimate
the fair value of the interest rate swap
contracts at the end of the reporting period,
which therefore exposed the Group to interest
rate risk. The management considers the
exposure to interest rate risk is insignificant as
all contracts matured in March 2011.

32. ﬁ%ﬂl El\.f

b.

EREAREERRRBEK(E)

mismEkE(E)
R ()

(i)

(@)

FTEERMEERERAR
(%&)
AT BURE DT IR B F 8
ﬁEﬁfﬁEZW“ﬁﬁhﬁﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁé
TE o A M IRER &
2F 2 B EHIEE A RE
wmE - METEEEABAR
A = s Th(E 310034
F(ZZZTNF  1008F) 2
Esgomd KREEEY
MERAEHRESEEB L
ZHE

i F) & £ F /T B 100 24
% AT H A 8
# AREERBEE-_ZT—F
¢+_H_+ BILtFEZ
B B A ) A1 A /i hn
22,635,000 L (ZEZ 1
F A/ HN20,381,000
BIT) °

ITEERMEENAE

RE R EFR LM =X
HHAEH ZREMETAY
EUAERREDEARR - A&
B 780 s B R (A a A K42
HeaMmzAFE BAmMER
AEBEHEBRNERR - B2
ERBEAMEEHNER T
**E HEIH - SR
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32. Financial Instruments (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Other than loans receivable as disclosed in note 22 which
are fully impaired, the Group does not have significant
concentration of credit risk as trade receivables consist
of a large number of customers, spread across diverse
industries and geographical areas.

In order to minimise credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual receivable at each
balance sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are recognised for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

With respect of credit risk arising from the loans
receivable, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each loan receivable at the end of each reporting period
and allowance for loans receivable are made.

The management of the Company considers that the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from default of the
loan receivable is limited as the amount has been fully
provided for. The Group manages its credit risk by closely
monitoring and follow up action has been taken to recover
the overdue loans receivable.
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32. Financial Instruments (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors its
current and expected liquidity requirements regularly and
ensuring sufficient liquid cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from reputable financial institutions to
meet the Group’s liquidity requirements in the short and
long term.

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group also
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. Specially, bank loans
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of banks
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for
other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flow. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rates, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted
contractual net cash outflows on derivative instruments
that settle on a net basis.

32. ﬁ%ﬂl El\.f

b.
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32. Financial Instruments (Continued)

090

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
When the amount payable is not fixed since the balances
are denominated in currencies other than functional
currencies of the relevant group entity, the amount
disclosed has been determined by reference to the
foreign currency exchange rate at the end of the reporting

period.

2010

Non-derivative
instruments

Trade and other payables

Variable interest rate bank
and other borrowings

Derivative instruments
- net settlement
Interest rate swap
- net cash outflows

2009

Non-derivative
instruments

Trade and other payables

Variable interest rate bank
and other borrowings

Derivative instruments
- net settlement
Interest rate swap
- net cash outflows

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
WETS
BRI
%
ZE-2f
FiETR
FERRER Lt FE -
EEBTEEREMES
2,01
IR
-REERE
H&zH
-ReMmITE
Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
ETH
B A=
%
ZERNE
FETR
FERRER Lt FE =
RRBEEREMES
1.96
fETR
-RRELE
Gilkd et
-ReMmiTE

0to3
months

EZ={§R
HK$000
TH

1,365,299

1,364,133

2,729,432

1,747

0to3
months

2R
HK§'000
TR

868,263

1,936,450

2,794,713

1,801
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4-6
months

mEAMEA
HK$'000
T

110,399

110,399

46
months

BEARA
HK$'000
TR

52,019

52,019

1,801

32. @@MIA#)

7-12
months

tZ+=fER
HK$'000
THT

219,501

219,501

7-12
months

tE+=fAA
HK§'000
TR

45,520

45,520

3,601

b.

EREAREERRRBEK(E)

REESRM(E)

ARG FAEEREER 2

BEEH LA

SNNEREEHE - TS BUEN £ R IEE
E o RIEREZEET)

HEPE R

1-2 23

year years
-EWE  WMEZF
HK$'000  HK$'000
TAx T
270,945 217,676
270,945 217,676
1-2 2-3

year years
—EfF ME=&
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL
8,323 6,711
8,323 6,711
7,208 1,801

o

35
years

SERE
HK$'000
TR

126,281

126,281

3-5
years

“ERE
HK$'000
T

SIRNREHRZIN

Total
undiscounted
cash flows

AfRRE
HESE
HKS$'000

i

1,365,209

2,308,935

3,674,234

1,747

Total
undiscounted
cash flows

ARHE
RELR
HK§ 1000

ThRL

868,263

2,049,023

2,907,286

16,207

Carrying
amount at
st
December
Rt=A
=t-H
ZIREfE
HK$'000
TR

1,365,299

2,263,472

3,628,771

1,746

Carrying
amount at
st
December
Rt=A
=t-H
prd i
HK$'000
TAR

868,263

2,038,070

2,896,333

7414
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

The table that follows summarises the maturity analysis
of term loans with a repayment on demand clause based
on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan
agreements. The amounts include interest payments
computed using contractual rates. As a result, these
amounts were greater than the amounts disclosed in the
“on demand” time band in the maturity analysis contained
above. Taking into account the Group’s financial position,
the directors do not consider that it is probable that the
bank will exercise its discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such term loans will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements.

0tod 4-6
months months
ZE=fR BEAEA
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET Thn

31 December 2010 “E-EF+-A=+-7 .

31 December 2009 ZFEAFTZAZT-A -

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative financial instrument) are determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is
estimated using discounted cash flow analysis with
reference to market rate of foreign currency and/or
interest rate at the reporting date for remaining duration of
the outstanding contracts.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximates their fair values.

7-12
months

t2+-fiR
HK$'000
Thm

CREREEREREEE)

MEESEMEE)

a5 B B R 5 HAR T 2 % B F & AT
TR - AA EPRBEETESRBE TR
TEASRBEHRZE -

TREGABRIBFENE R G E 2 EERE
ERAH - IMESRER R EHER
ZEIHANH - ZFTREBRAGHFE
FHEZFBMRK - Bt - ZFLEENR L
MXEEI B DT RMERES INRIEE 2 &
BR% o Bt hAEE 2 HHEIN - EF
W ARRRITA R TR BB RERAS
B EERK - EEREZEFEHER
FHRE N B ek < 3 FE TR & K B i
2

Total

undiscounted

1-2year  2-3years  3-5years  cashflows

ARRE

-ERWE e B3t RESE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ThT T T Thn

95,625 - - 95,625

41,046 20,363 - 61,409
AF{E

EREERERAGB(TEEITESRT
B)ZAHETREBEE BRI ZEERA
ENFTIRRSRENBERDOITEE -

TEERMTAZAFENZEREKRA
Kz RABMRIRBEA 2T IEERR,
HAE - AP RRSREDIERT ©

EERRREBERAIAGEE M BEHRER
ZEMEENERAGBZRMERLR
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32. Financial Instruments (Continued) 32.

c. Fair value (Continued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the only financial
instrument of the Group that was measured subsequent
to initial recognition at fair value is interest rate swaps,
of which the fair value are derived from input other that
quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
price), i.e. level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

33. Operating Lease Commitments

The Group as lessee

At the reporting date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

EMTITR#)

c. DFREE)
REFEMBARKR AR R FEFE

NP BER-FENFT A=t
B AEENSUATERRET B2
— ST AATESRS - Kb ATEDB
A - AR A B RMEAR) 5
P (& BAAHTE) (2R AFESR)
BERABIEEH -

. REHARE
FAEBEREBA

R\ER  AKERBETARBELLHONT
SRR B 2 R SAEAA N FORIET

2010 2009

—3-®F  ZFEAF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT FHET

Within one year —FR 2,792 3,441
In the second to third years inclusive F_FEE=F(PREEEMF) 822 2,087
3,614 5,528

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated
for terms of two to three years with fixed rentals.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$7,417,000 (2009: HK$5,767,000), which was derived from
letting of staff quarters included in the Group’s property, plant
and equipment.

At the reporting date, the Group had contracted with tenants
for the following future minimum lease payments:

REBONFEAREREE THA E%%ﬂﬁ
ENZHEE - HERRSME=F - L /E
He e

AEBEAHEEA
AEERIOZMERS WA BT,417,000/8 T
(ZZZTAF : 5,767,000/870) © ZEHESWA
FRALEFAREEDE - BEREHEZE
TIESE

RE|EH - REED T HIARRKER DMK
BRI AH -

2010 2009

—ET-FF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHT F#IT

Within one year —FR 724 716
In the second to fifth year inclusive FFEFAF(REEEMTE) 1,448 2,148
2,172 2,864
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34. Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for
but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of
acquisition of plant and equipment

Capital expenditure authorised but not
contracted for in respect of
acquisition of plant and equipment
and available-for-sales investment

35. Share Option Schemes

34, EARELE

2010 2009
—ZT-FF —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHIT
HREERE LRBERTH
BRELE P IETREF
BB EAART H
47,486 40,838
FHEERE KA R
AT SR A B
BRFTHZERT T,
155,337 360,000

35. B ESTE

Pursuant to resolutions passed at an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company on 22 December 2003, the Company
has terminated a share option scheme which was adopted on
22 May 2001 (the “Old Scheme”) and adopted a new share
option scheme (the “New Scheme”).

(i)

Old Scheme

The purpose of the Old Scheme is to motivate employees
of the Group and to allow them to participate in the
growth of the Company. The maximum number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the
Old Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the share
capital of the Company in issue from time to time. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual is not permitted to
exceed 25% of the aggregate number of shares for the
time being issued and issuable under the Old Scheme.
Any participants who accepts an offer of the grant
of an option in accordance with the terms of the Old
Scheme shall pay to the Company HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof within a period of 30
days from the date on which an option is offered to the
participant.

At 31 December 2010, the number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted previously and which
remain outstanding under the Old Scheme was 15,000
(2009: 345,000), representing less than 0.1% (2009: 0.1%)
of total issued share capital of the Company. The options
are exercisable at any time until 21 May 2011.

BEARNTNR _EZ=F+_-_A -+ -HE/T
ZRERIASHRBZRZR  NARBRIE
N-TE—FRA-+-ARMHZERELE
([EFTE1)) - WIRM—IEFN AR AT &I ([ 3751
gl -

() E=aE

E SIS aSBAAEEZIES WEES
SEANRZER - RIFEFTEIR] TR
ZBREMS R ZRNEE - Zm TMEiB
BARNE R BEITRAR10% © ATHE
FERMERIA L2 BBRAEFTS & 2 B 5 E
B e MSBRAERBERETSIDHT
KA BT 2 BRAD B EHI25% o (EAIRIRE
TR TR B IR 2 2 BB
ElERTLEEE B0 BEAA
AR EFRRAAFEZT1.0087T

N-ZE—TFE+-F=+—8  E:2E
TRIBEB R LR ERITEBRERS
B2 D EE &15,000( —EZHE
345,000/%) ' AN RA R B EITAR A2
DPROA%B(ZZEZTNF : 0.1%) o BBAEHE
AR -—T——%1 A= +— B2 Eae
FIRTTHE ©
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35. Share Option Schemes (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Old Scheme (Continued)

The following tables disclose details of the Company’s
share options held by the employees (including directors)
and movements in such holdings during the current and
prior year:

Exercisable Exercised  Outstanding
Date of grant period price  at1.1.2009
RZBENE
-A-H
RiLAH el k@ WA
HK$
BT
Directors:
£
16 July 2001 17.7.2001 t0 21.5.2011 2.19 400,000
“FT-FLATAR CTT-FLATHAE
Z2——¥RA-t-H
Employees:
&g
16 July 2001 17.7.2001 t0 21.5.2011 2.19 5,000
ZEE-5tATAA ZEE-EtATtAE
—Z——ERA-+-R
405,000

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s
share at the dates of exercise is HK$9.73 (2009:
HK$8.20).

New Scheme

The Company’s New Scheme was adopted for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to eligible persons
or rewarding for their contribution or potential contribution
to the Group and will expire on 21 December 2013.
Under the New Scheme, the Board of Directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible persons, including
(i) any director or proposed director, full-time employee
or proposed employee of any member of the Group or
controlling shareholder or any company controlled by a
controlling shareholder; (i) any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any controlling
shareholder or any company controlled by a controlling
shareholder; and (jii) any business or joint venture partner,
contractor, agent or representative of any supplier of
goods or services to or any customer or distributor of
goods or services of any member of the Group or any
controlling shareholder or a company controlled by a
controlling shareholder.
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35. MR E ()

() E=tEE)
TRERES(BEES)MFBEARRIBR
BZHBERNAFER FFRANZEER
2 ZEER
Number of options

BREHA

Exercise  Outstanding Exercise  Outstanding

during at during at

theyear  31.12.2009 theyear  31.12.2010
RZEENE R-B-%%
t=A=t-H t=R=t-A

FRTR AT ERfE W AT

(60,000) 340,000 (325,000) 15,000
- 5,000 (5,000) -

(60,000) 345,000 (330,000) 15,000
RRRRMRITE R 2 iR T E S
9.73BTT(ZZTNEF : 8.20/87TT) °

(i) FraraEl

KRR ZHFTEEEATEEERALTH
REFREHANEE 2 ERETRERIMER
W WER—_E—=F+_A-+—HfEF
W oo IRBFTETE - ARARESSAREE
fEiETFEERAL - BIEH)AEEERK
BAR] ~ PR AR B sl R A AR ] 2 AR
RNAZAMEZESEHERES - 2REBSX
ERER  (ANEEEMKERR - E[
PR AR R Sl P R AR BR AT | 2 (E (R A R BEA T
ZEMFEHSZERMFEA  R(i)VAEE
I E AT « (E{aIEAEI ER slIERE AR R
bt A RGN AR EIE =t v A4S
EERE - RER - EHERFAREHRERS
RE - EREF - EMRE DR -
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35. Share Option Schemes (Continued)

(i)

New Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the New Scheme and the Old
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point
in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options granted to substantial shareholders
or independent non-executive directors in excess of 0.1%
of the Company’s share capital and with a value in excess
of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be accepted within 21 days from
the date of option offer, upon payment of HK$1.00 per
option. Options may be exercised at any time from the
date of grant of the share option to the 10th anniversary
of the date of grant. The exercise price is determined
by the directors of the Company, and will not be less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant, (i) the average closing price
of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of
the Company’s share.

At 31 December 2010, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted previously which remain
outstanding under the New Scheme was 56,475,000
(2009: 56,475,000), representing approximately 11.2%
(2009: 11.9%) of total issued share capital of the
Company. The options are exercisable at any time until
21 December 2013.

35. MR E ()

(i)

et 8l(#&)

RARERATRRESAREZIBFRAT 1B
BEar S| RERT IR TR 2 BRERTS
2B EE - TEBBARA TR
2 EEBEITRMH10% o RAERRDTRE
FEIEZBRT IR —FERREIA
BRIA L8] TR 2 BB AT S R 2 B D
HE  TEBBARAMEARREE T
BEAD 2 1% © A E BRRR S IB I FEHITE
ERHBBARRRA01%LEEIBRS
5,000,000/ 7 2 IR MR R R E AR R
AIRR AL -

Rz B AR BB & BR S
21BN N B0 BIRE1.008TT 27
IR o BBARE R R BB AR B AR S
ERE AT BFEHARARERITRE - 176
BERARBEEEE - ABTLRIAT
REE ()ARBRORERHB#H 2 %S
B (RO REER L B AEE %A
ZTHEWTE « Ry ANARRMG 2 EE -

R=ZF—ZFF+_A=+—8 " BEH
ERBAEERE RMAITEBRERR
B R Z D E B 556,475,000 (==&
T NF : 56,475,000/%) - (EARRFE
BITRAAE 2 911.2% ( ZETNF ¢
11.9%) - BREAINR_ZE—=F+=A4
—+— BRI 2 TR RITE o

ENERgRAT —E—Zgan 095
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35. Share Option Schemes (Continued) 35. BERESTE (=)
(i) New Scheme (Continued) (i) FEtBI(E)
The following table discloses details of the Company’s TERFEEES (BIEESR) AR RER
share options held by the employees (including directors): RS
Number of options
BREHA
Outstanding
at 1.1.2009 Exercised
Exercisable Exercise and  and cancelled Outstanding
Date of grant period price 31.12.2009 during the year at 31.12.2010
RZZZNEF
—A-B&K
“EERE R-Z-2F
+=ZA=t+—H ERfTE  +=A=t-A
Riti A E Gigdilc 1@ W RATE R i RATHE
HKS
BT
Directors:
£%:
26 February 2004 27.2.2004 t0 21.12.2013 11.6 17,350,000 - 17,350,000
“ZTEFE-A=TAH ZTEEE-A=++AZE
“E-=f+-A=1—H
15 June 2006 16.6.2006 to 21.12.2013 9.58 9,000,000 - 9,000,000
“ET R FERATHA ZEEERATAEE
“E-=f+ZA=1—H
26,350,000 - 26,350,000
Employees:
=
26 February 2004 27.2.2004 t0 21.12.2013 11.6 25,625,000 - 25,625,000
“ZZEE-A=TAHE  ZEEEE-A-t+tAZ
“E-=f+ZA=1—H
15 June 2006 16.6.2006 to 21.12.2013 9.58 4,500,000 - 4,500,000
“ET R FRATRA g AN =
“E-=f+ZA=1—H
30,125,000 - 30,125,000
56,475,000 - 56,475,000
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36.

37.

38.

F-TE+- A=t ALAE

Retirement Benefits Schemes

All of the Group’s Hong Kong employees of the Group are
required to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. The
Group is required to contribute 5%, while the employees are
required to contribute 5% of their salaries to the scheme to the
maximum of HK$1,000 per month for each employee.

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the salaries of their employees to the state-
managed retirement benefit scheme. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme.

Government Grants

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has government
grants of HK$11,441,000 (2009: HK$12,600,000) included
in trade and other payables, to subsidise the acquisition
of property, plant and machinery for scientific research
development. The amount has been treated as deferred income
and will be transferred to profit or loss over the useful lives of the
relevant assets. This policy resulted in a credit to profit or loss in
the current year of HK$4,047,000 (2009: HK$1,693,000).

Related Party Transactions

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year were as follows:

R HRER
R T

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to
the performance of individuals and market trends.

36.

37.

38.

RKEREE

AEEZ2REAEBREYASNBHEAES
A8 o AEBEEHSWREF - MiE 8 INMARZ
AFEER EFBs% 25k - BREEZZAH
&% 41,0008 7T °

RETREMEREARY - FEMBAREAR
EREENRAENFEELBENEEE S
BE T Bt 2 3K - NEE B RKRE TS
P 2 BEERMZTEIELAMK -

IEg5=4-1

RIBERR - AEEREEDHKBENE  BE
Ko 23 DA F B 35 R 2 BT 72 86 11,441,000
BIL(ZZTZAHF : 12,600,000 7T ) 51 A FEfF
BRIE N EL A FE S FRIE o Z BB E WAR AR
AWIZ AR EE 2 (FAF SR8 - K
KREYARFE R AB#m 2 25 /54,047,000 7T
(ZZZTAF : 1,693,000/87T) °

BEALRS

AEEESREMFTEETERENE 2 &I
T

2010 2009
—E-%F  CTRAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
31,062 18,819
132 132
31,194 18,951

BEENIETBRABZHFM I OFHEESS
ZEAZRBRTIZBBEETE -

ENERgRAT —E—Zgan 097
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HAREE

BRHITFENRE 2 EERBREN -

REER

BREMRSEE

RREHRE - AEERZ— DBz - UIRE
—RHIRPERE(A2)FMA - maEfkm
REEFFR D LT RARIHI2% 2 5HE - RE
/5153,000,000/8 7T °

RAREBRMBEARER

39. Contingent liabilities 39.
Apart from those potential tax liabilities disclosed in note 11, the
Group has no contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting
period.

40. Event After the Reportng Period 40.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group
entered into an agreement for the acquisition of approximately a
2% equity interest in a company incorporated in the Republic of
China (Taiwan) with the registered shares listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange, for consideration of HK$153 million.

41. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 41.
Company

Nominal value of
Place of issued and fully
incorporationor  paid ordinary
registration/ share capital/
operation registered capital
Name of subsidiary AMRIBEL,, CERTRMZLER
WEAREE BRI A/ EMEAEE
Truly Electronics Manufacturing Limited  Hong Kong HK$1,000,010
EHNEFERAR B 1,000,010/ 7T
Truly Electrical Products Company Hong Kong HK$200
Limited 0 200787
EHEEERAR
Truly Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$872,894
BHIZERAA 0 872,894 7T
Truly Instrument Limited Hong Kong HK$100
EHESEERAR B& 100%7T
Truly Semiconductors (Korea) Ltd South Korea Korean won 250,000,000
(formerly known as Truly Instrument 5 250,000,0008 8
Korea Company Limited)
Truly Semiconductors (Korea) Ltd
(T Truly Instrument Korea
Company Limited)
Truly Semiconductors Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000
ENFERERAR B& 1,00087T
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Proportion ownership
interest held by
the Company
b NGE= Y Principal activities
FERELe  EEXEK
2010 2009
“E-ZF ZEThF
100% 100% Trading of electronic calculators and
electronic components
EFHERIRETTHES
100% 100% Inactive
&
100% 100% Inactive
&
100% 100% Trading of electric tooth brush
EHTHIES
- 94% Liquidated in April 2010
RIE-TFFR
100% 100% Trading of LCD products
REBETSERES
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41. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 41. ZATTEHBLATEER (&)

Company (Continued)

Name of subsidiary
WEARERE

Truly Opto-electronics Limited

Truly (USA) Inc.

EHBFAERAT"

EMESCUR)ERAR "

EMEECUR)ERAR

EMNTIXROUR)ERAR

ENBERCOUR)ERAR

*wholly foreign owned enterprise

Place of
incorporation or
registration/
operation
Rl
EE L]

Hong Kong
BE

United States of
America

xH

PRC
E

PRC
E

PRC
E

PRC
E

PRC
E

PRC
E

Nominal value of

issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/

registered capital
ERTRARLER
BA/EMEAEE

HK$1,000
1,00087T

US$20,000
20,000%7T

US$38,964,115
38,964,115% T

US$498,300,000
498,300,000 ¢

US$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T

US$26,000,000
26,000,000% 7T

HK$3,000,000
3,000,000 7T

US$35,750,000
35,750,000% 7

Except for Truly Electronics Manufacturing Limited and Truly
(USA) Inc., all subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at

31 December 2010 or at any time during the year.

I

Proportion ownership

interest held by

the Company

APAEEZ Principal activities
FERRERLH  FEEER

2010 2009

“E-TF —ZTHEF

100% 100% Trading of compact camera models

WEEREARS

100% 100% Marketing of electronic calculators

BT EHRHEE

100% 100% Manufacture of electronic
calculators and electronic
components

RESTHERRET Ll

100% 100% Manufacture of LCD products
SR BB T SEm

100% 100% Manufacture of electric toothbrush
HEBE TR

100% 100% Manufacture of compact camera
module
BUEMARIEA
100% 100% Manufacture of electronic
component

BUER Tt

100% 100% Inactive
i

* INEBALE

BRIEFEFARAE KTruly (USA) Inc.5h - FTE
MEBARHE AR RRERS

W=F—BE+=A=+— ARFREME
B SHBARREETREE EFES -

EMNERgRAT —E—Z=aam 099
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Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=t—HLEFE

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
—TERF  ZTEHF  TEN\F  TENF 2 EH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T FExT FET FHET FET
Revenue g 4,523,826 6,493,394 5,669,274 5,804,184 7,735,711
Cost of sales SHERAR (3,623,940) (5,387,613 (4,9783,300) (4,976,090) (6,825,125)
Gross profit EF| 899,886 1,105,781 695,974 828,094 910,586
Other income HagA 79,125 85,669 86,476 25,587 37,937
Other gains and losses HiEzm - - (45,053) (101,840) (36,768)
Administrative expenses THEAR (178,062) (168,753 (190,902) (186,450) (231,653)
Distribution and selling 288 RS ER AR
expenses (113,666) (139,108) (140,422) (110,302) (147,524)
Share of results of an iR YN
associate S (334) (445) = = -
Finance costs BT5E A (35,766) (57,821) (67,015) (46,643) (43,414)
Profit before tax BE AR 651,183 825,323 339,058 408,446 489,164
Income tax expense FriSHiR (119,137) (123,294) (77,929) (101,113) (174,208)
Profit for the year REEZ @Al 532,046 702,029 261,135 307,333 314,956
Attributable to: AR AL
Equity holders of the RRARERFFA A
Company 532,046 702,029 261,121 307,333 314,956
Non-controlling interest JEFE R RS - - 14 - -
532,046 702,029 261,135 307,333 314,956
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
At 31 December
R+=HA=+—-8
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
—TTR —TT+FE  ZTTN\FE ZTTNF —ETZF
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T FHET FET FET
Total assets BEE 4,094,541 5,902,044 6,560,209 6,659,801 7,915,016
Total liabilities A=Y (1,728539)  (2,869,713)  (3,314,104)  (3,175,747)  (3,964,611)
Equity attributable to equity AR FIEZSIEE A
holders of the Company e G R 2,366,002 3,032,331 3,246,105 3,484,054 3,950,405
Non-controlling interest IR = = (62) (62) -

2,366,002 3,032,331 3,246,043 3,483,992 3,950,405
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